IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED

AND SUBSIDIARIES

ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020




IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Directors' Report .......

COrporate GOVEINAICE wuuvireseecesesessesessssessessassrasessses

Finangial Report. v

indepandent AUdItor's REDOM vcoeeesesesssssiinens




IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the financial report of IAG New Zealand Limited (Company} and the consolidated
financial report of IAG New Zealand Limited and its subsidiaries (Consolidated entity) for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 and
the Auditor's Report thereon.

DIRECTORS
The Company's Directors in office at any time during the financial year are as follows:

8.C. Allen {Board Chalr since 22 November 2019}, B. J. Chapman (Director until 30 June 2020), A. D. Cornish, H. A. Fletcher (Director
and Board Chair until 25 Octaber 2019), P. G. Harmer (Director since 30 lanuary 2020), N.B. Hawkins (Director until 30 January
2020), D.A. McKay and C.J. Olsen.

Diractors wera in office for the entire petiod unless otherwise stated.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal continuing activity of the Consolidated entity during the year was the underwtiting of general insurance through 1AG New
Zealand Limited {Company) and refated corporate services and investing activities.

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

30 June 2020
$000
Profit Before Income Tax 246,452
Income Tax Expense (81,045)
Profit After Income Tax 165,407
Other Comprehensive Income and (Expense), het of Tax {797}
Retained earnings as at 30 June 2019 {892,499)
Dividends paid (26,800}
Retained earnings as at 30 June 2020 _ {754,789}
The state of the Consolidated entity's affairs as at 30 June 2020 was:
Equity 1,129,339
Represented by:
Assets 4,655,214
Liabilities (3,525,875}
1,129,339
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The net resuit of the Consolidated entity after applicable income tax for the firancial year ended 30 June 2020 was a profit of $165.4
million. {2019 - profit of $294.5 milkion),

DIVIDENDS
Dividends of $26.9 million were paid during the year (2019 - $64.5 million).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

The Company continues to be impacted by the Canterbury earthquakes that occurred in 2010 to 2011, as well as the aftershocks
experienced in 2012. The Company's reinsurance arrangements have significantly mitigated the gross costs attributable to the
Canterbury earthquakes. To further mitigate the uncertainty of the gross costs attributable to the earthquakes, effective 1 January
2016, IAG NZ purchased adverse development cover (ADC) which provides $900 million of additional protection.

During the year the gross claims expense was impacied by $100 million adverse development of claims. This was fully offset by the
ADC and the impact on net claims expense was nil. As at 30 June 2020 there is $235 million remaining of additional protection.

The Company has decided 1o close the majority of its AMI and State retail stores. The estimated costs and assat impairments of $34.5
million have been repoarted in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item, fransaction, or event
of a matetial and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the
Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

DIRECTORS' USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION
During the repariing period the Board received no notices from Directors of the Company requesting to use Company information
received in their capacity as Directors, which would not otherwise have been available to them.




DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION, INTERESTS AND EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION
The Company, with its shareholder's approval, has applied the exemption available under section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993 in
net disclosing the information required under section 2111} paragraphs (a) and {) to () of the Companies Act 1993,

AUDITOR
It is proposed that the auditor, KPMG, continue in office in accordance with section 207T of the Companies Act 1993.

Signed at Auckland this 29th day of luly 2020 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director

2 1AG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED




IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

THE BOARD

The Roard is accountable to the shareholder for the performance, operations and affairs of the Company. The role of the Board is to
govern the Company hy ensuring that there is an effective governance framework in place to promote and protect the Company's
intetests for the benafit of stakeholders, including compliance with New Zealand law and regutations. The Directors represent and
serve the interests of the shareholder and collectively oversee and appralse the strategies, policies and performance of the Company.

The Board is responsible for oversight, including:
E  driving the strategic direction of the Company and approving corporate strategies,

B approving significant corporate initiatives including major acquisitions and divestments, projects, and capital management
transactions;

approving the Company's risk management programme, including risk appetite and tolerance;

evaluating Board processes and performance of the Board as a whole, as welt as gontributions by individual Directors;
monitoring management’s performance and the exercise of the Board's delegated authority;

evaluating regularly and, if nacessary, replacing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO);

reviewing CEO, Chief Finangia} Officer (CFO) and senior management succession planning; and

setting standards for and ensuring that proper governance practices (including appropriate standards of ethical behaviour,
corporate governanee, and social and environmental responsibility) are adhered to at all times.

The Board considers its size and composition annually. The Board's policy is to ensure that the Board comprises Directors who
coltectively have the relevant experience, knowledge, diversity and skills required, considering the Company’s current size, market
position, complexity and stratagic focus.

The Directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

$.C. ALLEN - Chair and independent Non-Executive Director

BSc, BCom, INFINZ (Fellow), CFInstD, AMP (INSEAD)

Mr Simon Allen was appointed as an Independent Non Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG (NZ} Holdings Limited on
1 September 2045, In November 2019, Mr Allen was appointed Board Chair of 1AG New Zealand Limited and IAG (NZ) Holdings
Limited, and appointed a Director of Insurance Australia Group Limited. He is a member of the IAG New Zealand Limited's People and
Remuneration, Risk, and Audit Committees. Mr Allen is also a Director of 1AG No. 1 Limited, IAG No. 2 Limited, AM! Insurance Limited,
and Lumley General Insurance (N.Z.) Limited.

Mr Aflen has over 30 years' commercial experience in the New Zealand and Australian Capital Markets. He was Chief Executive of
investment bank BZW and ABN AMRO in New Zealand for 21 years, and has been actively involved in advising New Zealand
companies, Government and investors on matters relating to their strategies and capital markets participation. Mr Allen is Chair of
The New Zealand Refining Limited, is a Director of Gibbston Highway Limited, Hammerforce Limited and a Trustee of the Antarctic
Heritage Trust,

Past governance roles include Chair positions with Crown Fibre Holdings which was renamed Crown Infrastructure Partners, Auckland
Coundcil Investments, St Cuthbert’s College, the Financial Markets Authority, and NZX Limited. Mr Allen has held directorships at the
New Zealand Stock Exchange (NZSE), Auckland Healthcare Services Limited along with a number of other unlisted companies.

B.J. CHAPMAN - Independent Non-Executive Dlrector

CNZM, BCom, CMInstD

Ms Barbara Chapman was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of [AG New Zealand Limited on 1. Novamber 2018. iIn November
2019, Ms Chapman was appointed Chair of IAG New Zealand’s People and Remuneration Committee, and is a member of its Risk
Committes and Audit Commitiee. Ms Chapman brings her extensive and diverse trans-Tasman executive experience to the Board
having served as Chief Executive and Managing Director of ASB Bank for seven years and having held a number of senior executive
roles responsible for marketing, communications, human resourcss, life insurance and retail banking in New Zealand and Austraiia

Ms Chaprman has an extensive list of professional achievements to her credit, including being hamed The New Zealand Herald's 2017
Business Leader of the Year. Ms Chapman is Chair of Genesis Energy Limited, a Directer and Deputy Chair of The New Zealand
Initiative Limited, a Non-Executive Director of Fletcher Building Limited and Fletcher Building Industries Limited, 1AG (NZ) Holdings
Limited and New Zealand Media and Entertainment Limited. In 2019, Ms Chapman was awarded a Companion of the New Zealand
Order of Merit (CNZM) for services to business, and in June 2019 was appointed Chair of the CEO Summit Committee for APEC 2021.,

Ms Chapman resigned as a Non Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG {(NZ) Holdings Limited on 30 June 2020.

A.D. CORNISH - Independent Non-Executive Director

MBA

Mr Andrew Cornish was appointed Non Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and 1AG {NZ) Holdings Limited on 1 June 2018,
He is Chair of the |AG New Zealand's Risk Committee and Is a member of its People and Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committes. Mt Corhish is a Non Executive Director of MLC Limited, Chair of its Risk Committee, and a member of its People and
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. Mr Cornish is Chalr of the Australasian New Car Assessment Programme (ANCAP),
and holds directorships with Javsoe Pty Limited, Larapinta Connect Pty Limited and Tandem Property Services Limited.

Prior to retiring from executive [ife in June 2016, Mr Comnish was Chief Operations Officer at 1AG Group and prior to that was Chief
Executive Officer, Parsonal Insurance, IAG from 2014, In that role, he was appointed Chair and President of the Insurance Council of
Australia. Mr Cornish has also held the position of Chief Executive Officer, Direct Insurance, |AG from 2009-2014,

Mr Cornish has more than 40 years' experience in the insurance industry, including with the RBS Group as Managing Director, NIG




insurance {UK) and CEO of Direct Line Insurance International, and with Zurich Insurance. He has extensive experience as a Director
for Green Flag Group Limitad, National Westminster Insurance Services Limited, Royal Bank Insurance Service Limited, Direct Line
Insurance and the Insurance Council of Australia.

H.A. FLETCHER - Chair and Independent Non-Executive Director
BSc, BCom, MCom (Hons), VIBA
Mr Hugh Fletcher retired as a Non Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG {NZ) Holdings Limited on 25 October 2019,

P.G. HARMER - Executive Director

Chief Executive Offlcer, Insurance Australia Group Limited :

Mr Peter Harmar was appointed an Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited on 30 January 2020.
He was appointed Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Insurance Australia Group Limited {“IAG") on 16 November 2015,
and is a member of IAG's Nomination Committee.

Mr Harmer joined IAG in 2010 and has held a number of senior roles, most racently as Chief Executive of the IAG Labs division,
responsible for driving digltal and innovation across IAG and its brands, and creating incubator areas which will specifically explore
innovative opportunities across the fintech landscape.

Before this, Mr Harmer held the role of Chief Digital Officer with a remit to develop a group-wide digital strategy. He was formerly Chief
Executive of the Commercial insurance division created in July 2014 when IAG implemented its new oparating model, He joined IAG as
Chief Executive Officer, CGU Insurance. Mr Harmer was previously Chief Executive Officer of Aon Limited UK and 2 member of Aon's
Global Executive Board, and spent seven years as Chief Executive Officer of Aon’s Australian operations.

He has over 35 years' experience in the insurance industry, including senior roles in underwriting, reinsurance broking and commercial
insurance broking as Managing Director of John C. Lioyd Reinsurance Brokers, Chairman and Chief Executive of Aoh Re ahd Chalrman
of the London Market Reform Group. Mr Harmer has completed the Harvard Advanced Management Programme.

N.B. HAWKINS - Executive Director

Chief Financlal Officer, Insurance Australia Group Limited

BCom, FCA

Mr Nick Hawkins resigned as an Executive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG (N2) Hoidings Limitad on 30 January 2020.

D.A. McKAY - Independent Non-Executive Director

GNZM, BA, AMP (Harvard)

Mr Doug McKay was appointed as a Non Exectitive Director of IAG New Zealand Limited and IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited on 10 February
2014, Mr McKay is Chair of the IAG New Zealand Limited's Audit Committee, and member of its People and Remuneration Committee
and Risk Commiittee..

Mr McKay is Chair of the Bank of New Zealand Limited and the Eden Park Trust Board, Mr McKay currently holds directorships with
Fletcher Building Limited, Fletcher Building Industries Limited, Genesis Energy Limited and National Australia Bank Limited. Heis a
Chartered Member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand.

Mr McKay has held previous executive positions with Lion Nathan Limited, Carter Holt Hatvey Limited, Goodman Fielder Pty Limited,
Sealord Group Limited, Independent Liquor (NZ) Limited and Procter & Gamble. Mr McKay was the inaugural Chief Executive of the
Auckland Council from May 2010 to December 2013, In 2015, Mr McKay was awarded an Officer of the New Zealand Order of Merit
(ONZM) for services to business and local government.

C.). OLSEN - Executive Director

Chief Executive, IAG New Zealand Limlted

BAAcc

Mr Craig Otsan was appointed Chief Executive New Zealand In December 2015 with a commencement date of 1 January 2016. My
Olsen was previously Executive General Manager - Direct Insurance New Zealand. Prior to that, he was Executive General Manager -
Transformation, responsible for the successful integration of AMI into IAG in New Zealand.,

Mr Olsen joined IAG in 2000 and has held a number of senior roles in Australia and New Zealand, Including Head of Workers®
Compensation - Victoria; and national General Manager of CGU Workers’ Compensation division. He is a Director of AM! Insurance
Limited, IAG New Zeatand Limited, 1AG (NZ} Holdings Limited, 1AG No.1 Limited, 1AG No.2 Limited, Lumiey General Insurance (N.7.)
Limited; and the Vice Presidant of the Insurance Gouncil of New Zealand.

Mr. Glsen has a Bachelor of Accountancy from the University of South Australia and has completed programs at the Australian
Graduate School of Management and the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Membership of the Audit Committee comprises Doug McKay (Chair), Simon Allen, Barbara Chapman and Andrew Cornish. Hugh
Fletcher was & member of the Audit Committee from 1 July 2019 to 25 Octoher 2019,

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board ir fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities by monitoring:

B the integrity of external and internal financial reporting, including compliance with applicable Jaws, regulations and other
requirements in relation to external financial reporting,

B that Directors and management are provided with high guality financial and non-financial information that reflects a true and fair
view of the Company's petrformance and can be refied on by them to make informed judgements;
tax and financial risks;
that the independence of the externat auditor, the internal auditor and the Appointed Actuary is safeguarded.

RISK COMMITTEE
Membership of the Risk Committee comprises Andrew Cornish (Chalr), Simon Allen, Barbara Chapman and Doug McKay. Hugh
Fletcher was a member of the Risk Committee from 1 July 2019 to 25 October 2018,

The purposs of the Risk Committee is to assist the Board with discharging its responsibilities to exercise due care, skill and diligence

regarding:

€ effe%tive oversight of material risks and oversight of risk management and control systems for adequacy and effective function;

B monitoring compliance with the Company’s Risk Management Programme and associated policies, Group Risk Management
Strategy and associated policies and Group Reinsurance Management Strategy;

B effective operation and aversight of compliance systems and to ensure compliance with the requiramaents of applicable laws,
regulations, industry codes and organisational policies and standards;

®m  oversight of the Company's risk management and governance frameworks,; and
safeguarding the independence of the Appointed Actuary and Chief Risk Officer.

PEOPLE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Membership of the People and Remuneration Committee comprises Barbara Chapman {Chair since 21 November 20193, Simon Allen,
Andrew Cornish and Doug McKay. Hugh Fletcher was Chair and member of the People and Remuneration Commitlee from 1 July
2019 to 25 October 2018.

The purposa of the People and Remuneration Committes is to assist the 1AG NZ Board to discharge its responsibilities on matters

relating to people and remuneration, including:

B the workplace, health and safety framework and strategy;

a  workplace divarsity and inclusion strategies, including in respect of the processes for talent management and succession
planning;

#  ensuting that remuneration practices are designed to help drive business objectives and motivate employees to perform at the
highest level and encourage behaviours that align to IAG NZ's purpose and spirit;

8  providing assurance {o the Board on the effectiveness, strategic alignment, integrity and compliance of IAG NZ's remuneration,
talent mahagement and succession planning policies and practices;

B being informed of management succession plans;
reviewing and monitoring the performance of management to ensure they have the skills and capabilities required to carry out
their roles; and

a reviewing Non-Executive Director and management remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Membership of the Nomination Committee comprises Simon Allen, Barbara Chapman, Andrew Cornish and Doug McKay. Hugh
Fletcher was a member of the Nomination Committee from 1 July 2019 to 25 Octeber 2019,

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to assist the Board of IAG NZ to discharge its responsibilities by ensuring that the Board
comprises individuals with an appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity, and who are best able to discharge the
responsibilities of Directors having regard to the present and likely futura needs of IAG NZ.




MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

LEADERSHIP TEAM RISK COMMITTEE (LTRC)
Merbership of the LTRC comprises Craig Olsen (Chait), Melissa Cantell, Kevin Hughes, Martin Hunter, Alistair Smith, Garry Taylor and
Blair Williams.

The role of the LTRC is to promote a proactive tisk management culture; to ensure adequate awareness and debate; and provide
adequate management oversight of all significant risks in relation to the following risk areas:

strategic;
insurance;
reinsurance;
financial; and
operational.

B B B R R

LEADERSHIP TEANM AUDIT COMMITTEE (LTAC)
Membearship of the LTAC comprises Alistair Smith (Chair), Christian Barrington, Stephen Everett and Mariin Hunter,

The rale of the LTAC is to allow senior management of the Company to provide input into the formulation of recommendations for the
Board concerning issues related to:

B teinsurance - including endorsement of major reinsurance renewal strategies;

e capital management - including processes, risk appetite, economic capital tardets and minimum capital requirements as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand;

B assetand lfability management - including overseeing market risk and making recommendations to the Board regarding balance
sheet and capital mix; and

B risk management.

INSURANCE RISK COMMITTEE {IRC)
Membership of the IRC comprises Marlin Hunter (Chair), Melissa Cantell, Drazenka Dordevich, Stephen Everett, Kevin Hughes, Darren
Maher, Alistair Smith, Garry Taylor and Blair Williams.

The role of the IRC is to oversee compliance with the Insurance Risk Framework and NZ Business Division Licence, which includes
approving any material changes to Underwriting, Pricing or Product.

RESERVING COMMITTEE
Membership of the Reserving Committee comprises Alistair Smith {Chair), Christian Barrington, Melissa Cantell, Stephen Everett, Kevin
Hughes, Martin Hunter and Garry Taylor.

The role of the Reserving Committes is to review the adequacy of the technical reserves of the insurance business including reviewing
the recommendations of the Actuarial Team.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER {CEOQ)

The Board has delegated responsibility for the overall management and profit performance of the Company, including all day-to-day
operations and administration, to the CEQ. The CEO is responsible for:

the efficient and effective operation of the Company,

fostering a culture of peirformance, integrity, respect and a considered sense of urgency;

ensuring the ongoing development, implementation and monitoring of 1AG's risk management and internal controls framework;
ensuring the Board is provided with accurate and clear information in a timely manner to promote effective decision-making; and
ensuring all material matters affecting the Company are brought to the Board's attention.

The CEOQ, together with the New Zealand Leadership Team, manages the Company in accordance with the policies, budget, corporate
pian and strategies approved by the Board, and has the power to manage the Company, subject to the limits set out in the Charter of
CEQ Delegated Authority Limits,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES, PRACYICES AND PROCESSES

The Company is a member of Insurance Australia Group Limited {"IAG Group™ and is committed to operaling and complying with all
IAG Group operating policies and procedures, except where they are inconsistent with the requirements of New Zealand law or
regulations, or where the Board considers they are not in the best interests of the Company. Where further refinement of IAG Group
policies and procedures is required to better reflact the New Zealand regulatory, legistative or operating environment, the Company has
specific policies in place to address the New Zealand situation.

The Gompany's corporate governance policies, practices and processes are contained in the Company’s Risk Management Programme
which has been approved by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019 2020 2019

$000 $000 $000 $C00
Premium revenue 4 2,882,175 2,775,998 2882175 2,775,998
Outwards reinsurance premium expense {1,263,455) _(1,205,362) (1,263455) (1,205,362)
Net premium revenue (i) 1,618,720 1,570,636 1,618,720 1,570,636
Claims expense 8 (1,879,185) (1,477,902) (1,679,465) (1,477,902)
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 4 709,852 612172 709,852 612,172
Net claims expense (i) 8 {969,31.3) {865,730) {969,313) (865,730)
Acquisition costs ) {495,815) {473,532) {495,815) (473,5632)
Reinsurance commission revenue 4 285,095 272,271 285,095 272,271
Net acquisition costs (210,720) {201,261} (21.0,720) (201,264)
Other underwtiting expenses 5 (188,792) {169,984) (188,792) {169.884)
Underwriting expenses  (iii) (399,512) (371.,245) (399,512) {371,245)
Underwriting profit (i) + {ii} + (ii) 245,895 333,661 249,895 333,661
Investment income on assets backing insurance liahilities 4 241,094 28,401 21,094 28,401
Investment expenses on assets backing insurance liabilities {1,750} {1,620) {1,750) {1,620}
Insurance profit 269,239 360,442 269,239 360,442
Investment income on shareholder's funds 4 {18,133) 47,298 {18,689) 47,071
Finance cosls i4 {2,956) - {2,956) -
Fee based, corporate and other expenses 5] {1,242) {932) (1,142} (8932)
Profit before income tax 246,908 406,808 246,452 406,581
Income tax expense 7 {81.,045) {112.668) (81,045) (112,068)
Profit for the year 165,863 2384 740 165,407 294513
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND (EXPENSE), NET OF TAX
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (1,078) (2,002) {1,078) {2,602)
Income tax (expense)/credit on other comprehensive incomne and
{expense) 281 569 281 569
Other comprehensive income and (expense), net of tax {797) {1,433) {797} {1,433}
Total comprehensive income and (expense) far the year, net of tax 165,066 203,307 __ 164,610 293,080

——a =

The above statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

NQOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019 2020 2019

$000 $000 $000 $000
ASSETS
Cash held for operational purposes ' 23 118,233 71,847 118,237 71,851
thvestments 12 1,394,451 1,369,545 1,395,949 1,371,692
Premium receivable 13 877,783 861,933 877,783 861,933
Trade and other receivables 13 51,219 61,461 51,219 61,461
Receivables from related bodies corporate 24 41,086 13,049 1,074 13,037
Current tax assets - 9 1 10
Deferred outwards reinsurance expense 10 735,232 720,015 735,232 720,015
Deferred acquisition costs 10 224,920 207,819 224,920 207,819
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 9 584,548 646,981 684,548 646,981
Deferred tax assets 7 214,982 292,820 241,982 292,820
Right-of-use assets 14 88,362 - 88,362 -
Plant and equipment 31,304 41,477 31,304 41,477
Intangible assets 15 13,170 15,848 13,170 15,849
investment in subsidiaties 17 1,204 1,302 - -
Goodwill 16 206,813 206,813 207,473 207,473
Other assets 14,147 12,435 13,960 12,248
Total assets 4,654,454 4,523 355 4,655,214 4,524,666
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18 246,918 230,101 248,456 231,689
Reinsurance premium payable 529,461 573,596 529,464 573,596
Payables to related bodies corporate 21 14,438 5,031 14,438 5,031
Unearned premium liability 11 1,324,097 1,301,906 4,324,097 1,301,906
Empioyee benefits provision 19 40,797 45,625 40,797 45,625
Qutstanding claims fability 8 1,147,856 1,044,737 1,147,856 1,044,737
tease liahilities 14 100,006 - 100,006 -
Other liahilities 120,764 109,196 120,764 109,196
Total liabilities 3,624,337 3,310,192 _8,525.875 3,311,780
Net assets ' 1130147 1,213,163 1129339 1212886
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 22 2,358,433 2,578,433 2,358,433 2,898,433
General reserve 22 {478,445) {478,445) {478,445) {478,445)
Equity reserve 22 4,402 5,614 4,140 5,397
Retained earnings {154,273) (892,439) {754,789) (892,499}
Total equily 1,430,417 1,213,163 1,129,339 1,212 886

Signed in Auckland this 28th day of July 2020 in accordance with a resolution.of the Directors.

Director Director

The ahove balance shests should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statemeiyh/.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

SHARE GENERAL EQUITY RETAINED
CONSOLIDATED CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS TOTAL EQUITY
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2020
Batance at the beginning of the financial year 2,578,433 (478,445) 5,397 {892,499} 1,212,886
Profit/(foss) for the year - - - 165,407 185,407
Other comprehensive expense that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - (797) {797)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the year ~ - - 164,610 164,610
Shares repurchased (220,000) - - - (220,000)
Share based payment - - (1,257) - (1,257)
Dividends determined and paid - - - (26,900) (26,900)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,358,433 {478,445) 4,140 (754,789} _ 1129339
2019
Batance at the beginning of the financial year 2,898,433 (478,445) 6,765 {1,121,079) 1,305,664
Profit/(loss) for the year - - 294,513 294,513
Other comprehensive expense that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - (1,433) {1,433}
Totai comprehensive income/{expense) for the year - - - 293,080 293,080
Shares repurchased {320,000) - - - {320,000)
Share hased payment - - (1,358) - {1,358)
Dividends determined and paid - - - {64.500) {64,500}
Balance at the end of the financial year 2578433 (478,445) 5,397 {892 439) 1,212,886
SHARE GENERAL EQUITY RETAINED
PARENT CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS TOTAL EQUITY
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2020
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,578,433 {478,445) 5,614 {892,439) 1,213,163
Profit/{loss) for the year - - - 165,863 165,863
Other comprehensive expense that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - {797) (797)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - - 165,066 165,066
Shares repurchased {220,000) - - - {220,000}
Share hased payment - - {1,212} - {1,212)
Dividends determined and paid - = - (28 .900) {26,900)
Balance at the end of the financial year —2.358433 {478.445) 4,402 (754,273) 1,130,117
2019
Balance at the heginning of the financial year 2,898,433 {478,445) 6,916 (1,121,2486) 1,305,658
Profit/{loss) for the vear - - - 294,740 294,740
Other comprehensive expense that will nat be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - (1,433) {1433)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - - 293,307 293,307
Shares repurchased (320,000) - - - {320,000)
Share based payment - - {1,302) - (1,302)
Dividends determined and paid - - - {64,500) {64,500)
Baiance at the end of the financial year 2,578433 (478,445) 5,614 (892,439) 1213163

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019 2020 2019

$000 $000 $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premium received 2,888,516 2,797,958 2,888,616 2,797,956
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 703,189 874,553 703,189 874,653
Claims costs paid (1,576,046) (1,723,598) (1,576,046) (1,723,598)
EQC claims costs paid, net of recoveries {3,047) 23,430 {3,047) 23,430
Outwards reinsurance premium expense paid (1,332,435) (1,142,695) (1,332,435) (1,142,695}
Dividends received 203 1,915 903 1,915
Interest and Trust distributions received 35,491 41,982 35,491 44,0982
Income taxes paid 82 (37 82 {37)
Other operating receipts 279,402 270,071 279,402 270,071
Other aperating payments (627,757) {599,897} {627,757) (599,897)
Finance costs paid {2,958) - {2,956) -
Net cash flows from operating activities 23 365,642 543,680 365,642 543,680
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from disposal of investments and plant and equipment 1,764,916 2,171,075 1,764,916 2,171,075
Outlays for investments and plant and equipment (1,814,606} (2,318330) (1.814.608) (2,318.330)
Net cash flows from investing activities {49,690} (147,255) {49.690) (147,255)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal element of lease payments {1.9,791) - {19,791)
Dividends paid {26,900) {64,500) (26,900) (64,500)
Outlays for repurchase of shares {220,000) {320,000) (220,000} {320,000)
Net cash flows from financing aclivities (266,691} {384.500) (266,691) {384.500)
Net movement in cash held 49,261 11,925 49,261 11,925
Effects of exchange rate changes on batances of cash held in
fareign currencies 54 {317y 54 (317)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the financial year 77,149 65,641 77,153 65,545
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 23 126,464 77,149 __126468 ___ 77,153

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financlal statements.




IAG NEW ZEALAND LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IAG New Zealand Limited {Company) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. Its registered office
and principal place of business is 1 Fanshawe Street, Auckland, New Zealand. This financial report is for the reporting vear ended 30
June 2020 and includes separate financial statements for the Company as an individual entity and consolidated financial statements
for the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as Consolidated entity),

The Company is wholly owned by IAG {NZ) Holdings Limited. The ultimate parent entity is Insurance Australia Group Limited (IAG), an
entity incorporated in Australia. As part of the 1AG Group (Group), the Company complies with a variety of policies and procedures
developed by IAG for application by all entities in the Group where applicable.

With the implementation of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 all general insurance entities undertaking insurance
business In New Zeatand are required to be licensed by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ). The Company has been granted a
full licence. As a result of being a licensed insurer, the Company is deemed to be a FMC reporting entity under the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA).

A. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ
GAAP). The Company has applied New Zealand Fquivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards {NZ IFRS) as applicabie for
Tier 1 for-profit entities and complies with NZ IFRS and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, and Interpretations as
appropriate to profit-oriented entities. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The Company is a reporting entity for the purposes of the FMCA and its financial statements comply with this Act.

The financial statements also comply, where relevant, with the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 and associated
Regulations,

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The significant accounting policies adopted In the preparation of this financial report are set out below. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of this financial report have been applied consistently by all entities in the Consolidated entity and ara the
same as those applied for the previous reporting year unless otherwise noted. The financial statements have been prepared on the
basis of historical cost principles, as modified hy certain exceptions noted in the financial report, with the principal exceptions being
the measurement of all investments and derivatives at fair value and the measurement of the outstanding claims liability and related
reinsurance and other recoveries at present value.

The presentation currency used for the preparation of this financial report is Mew Zealand dollars.
The balance sheet is prapared using the liquidity format in which the assets and liabilities are presented broadly in order of liquidity.

l. New Zeatand accounting standards issued but not yet effective
As at the date of this financial report, the only significant standard for which the mandatory application date falls after the end of this
current reporting year is NZ [FRS 17,

IFRS 17, the new accounting standard for insurance coniracts, was issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) on
18 May 2017, Since the standard was issued, various implementation matters have been raised by stakeholders and the 1ASB has
considered these concerns and suggested targeted amendments to the standard. The proposed amendments have been considered
by the 1ASB and Industty constituents and the finalised amendments were issued on 25 June 2020. One of the changes to the
standard, in addition to several others, is an agreed effective date for periods beginning, on or after 1 January 2023.

The first applicable reporting perfod for the Company Is expected to be the year ending 30 June 2024, with the comparative period for
the year ending 30 June 2023. The standard introduces a new general measurement model for accounting for insurance contracts,
with the application of a simplified approach {similar to NZ IFRS 4) permitied in certain circimstances. The Company has completed a
detailed impact assessment of the new standard and has determined that the Company is expected to be eligible to apply the
simplified approach to the insurance contracts issued by the Company (based on the current portfolio mix). It is axpected that there
will be substantial changes in presentation of the financial statements and disclosures.

Given the complexity and differing interptetation around key requirements of the standard, the final impact of certain requirements
may not be determined until global interpretations and regulatory responsas 1o the new standard are finalised.

. Changes In accounting policies
The new NZ IFRS that is applicable for the current reporting period is NZ IFRS 16 {Leases).

NZ IFRS 16, which was issued in 20186, sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases. H replaced the previous accounting requirements for leases, under NZ 1AS 17, effective from 1 July 2019 for the Company.

NZ IFRS 18 requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet in the form of a right-of-use asset (ROUA) and a
carresponding lease liability. The standard allows exemptions for short-term leases {less than 12 months) and for leases of low vaiue
assets. Fer the Company, the main impact of the new standard is on leases which were previously classified as operating leases,
being predominantly property and motor vehicle retated leases.

As a result of the adoption of NZ IFRS 16, the Company has recognised depreciation expense on ROUAs, on a straight-line basis over
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the lease term, and interest expense on lease liabilities.

The Company has adapted NZ IFRS 16 using the medified retrospective approach with the date of initial application being 1 July 2019,
Under this approach, the cumulative effect of adoption is recognised as an adjustment to opening retained earnings as at 1 July 2019,
with no restatement of comparative information. No adjustment was required to opening retained earnings as at 1 July 2018.

The madified retrospective approach aliows entities to use a number of practical expedients on adoption of the new standard, of which

the Company elected to use the following:
B the use of a single discaunt rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;

e relied on previous assessments of whether a lease was onerous immediately before the date of initial application.
The effect of adoption of NZ IFRS 16 as at 1 July 2019 is as follows:

Increase/(decrease}
$000
Assets
Right-of-use assets 112,769
Property and equipment {2,383}
Total assets 110,386
Liabilities
Lease liahilities 111,301
Other lizbilities {815)
Total liabilities 110,386
Equity

Retained earnings

On transition to NZ IFRS 16, the ROUA was measured as an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease paymenis.

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 to the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July
2019:

$000
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 June 2018 ' 125,081,
Discounted using the Company's incremental horrowing rate at the date of initial application (14,695)
Add; finance lease liabilities recoghised as at 30 June 2019 915
Lease liability recognised as at 1 July 2019 111,301

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using its
incremental horrowing rate at 1 July 2019, The weighted-average rate applied was 2.9%.

Apart from the above, there have been no other changes in accounting policies which have resulted in a material financial impact
during the curreat financial reporting peried.

€. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Suhbsidiaries
Consolidation is the inclusion of the assets and liabilities of the Parent and all subsidiaries as at the reporting date and the results of

the Parent and all subsidiaries for the year then ended as if they had operated as a single entity. The balances and effects of
intragroup transactions are eliminated from the consolidation, Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Parent. An investor
controks an investee if and only if the investor has power over the investee; exposure, or fights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns, Where an entity
either began or ceased to be controlled during a financial reporting period, the results are included only from the date control
commenced or up to the date controf ceased.

The financial information of all subsidiaries are prepared for consolidation for the same reparting period as the Parent, using
consistent accounting policies.

In the Company's financial statements investments in subsidiaries are recoghised at cost, uniess there has been an impairment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELATED TO GENERAL INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Al of the general insurance products and reinsurance products on offer, or utifised, meet the definition of an insurance contract (a
sentract under which one party, the insurer, accepts significant insurance risk from another party, the policyholder, by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event, the insured event, adversely affects the policyholder) and none of
the contracts contain embedded derivatives or are required to be unbundled. Insurance contracts that meel the definition of a
financial guarantse contract are accounted for as insurance contracts. This means that all of the general insurance products are

accounted for in the same manner.




D. PREMIUM REVENUE

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) and excludes fire service and earthquake levies
coilected on behalf of statutory bodies. Premium is recognised as earned from the date of attachment of tisk {genarally the date a
contract is agreed to but may be earlier if persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists) over the period of the related insurance
contracts in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk expected under the contracts. The pattern of the risks underwritten is
generally matched by the passing of time. The unearned poriion of premium is recognised as an unearned premium liability on the
balance shest.

Premium receivable is recognised as the amount becomes due and is normally settled between 30 days and 12 months. The
recoverability of premium recaivable Is assessed and provision is made for impairment based on objective evidence and having regard
to past default experience. Premium receivable is presentad on the balance sheet net of any provision for impairment.

E. OUTWARDS REINSURANCE

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense In accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service recaived. Accordingly,
a portion of outwards reinsurance premium expense is treated as a prepayment and presented as deferred outwards reinsurance
expense on the balance sheet at the reporting date. The reinsurance premium payable is carried at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for reinsurance received,

F. CLAIMS

The outstanding claims liability is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future payments relating to
claims incurred at the reporting date with an additional risk margin to atlow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. The
expacted fulure payments include those in refation to claims reported but not yet paid or not yet paid in full, claims incurred but not
enough reported (IBNER), ¢laims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the anticipated direct and indirect claims handling costs. The
liability is discounted to present value using an estimate of the risk free rate.

Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims liability.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability involves a number of kay assumptions and is the most critical accounting estimate.
All reasonable steps are taken to ensura that the information used regarding claims exposures is appropriate. Howsver, given the
uncertainty in establishing the liabitity, it is likely that the final outcome will be different from the original liability established. Changes
in claims estimates are recognised in profit or loss in the reporting year in which the estimates are changed.

G. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES

Reinsurance and other recoveries received or receivable on paid claims and on outstanding ciaims {notified and not yet notified) are
recognised as income. Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims are presented as part of trade and cther receivables net of any
provision for impairment based on objective evidence for individuat receivables. Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on
outstanding claims are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts caloulated on the same basis as the
outstanding claitms liability. Reinsurance does not relieve the originating insurer of its liabilities to policyholders and is presented
separately on the balance shest,

H. ACQUISITION COSTS

Costs associated with obtaining and recording general insurance contracts are referred to as acquisition costs, These costs include
advertising expenses, commissions or brokerage paid to agents or brokers, premium cottection costs, risk assessment costs and other
administrative costs. Such costs are capitalised where they relate to the acquisition of new business of the renewal of existing
business, are presented as deferred acquisition costs, and are amortised on the same basis as the sarning pattern of the premium
over the period of the related insurance contracts. The batance of the deferred acquisition costs at the reporting date represents the
capitalised deferred acquisition costs relating to unearned premium,

I. REINSURANCE COMMISSION REVENUE

Reinsurance commission revenue includes reimbursements by reinsurers o cover a share of IAG NZ's aperating costs and, where
applicable, fee income which reinsurers pay for accessing IAG's franchise. These thcome items are recognised broadly in line with the
reference premium over the term of the reinsurance agreements. Where applicable, the reinsurance commission revenue aiso
includes income which is based on the expected profitability of the covered business ceded to the reinsurer. This income is recognised
over the term of the reinsurance contract on a systematic basis.

J. LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

The liability adequacy test is an assessment of the carrying amount of the unearnad premiurm liability and is conducted at each
reporting date. If current estimates of the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims arising from the
rights and obligations under current general insurance contracts, plus ah additional risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty in
the central estimate, exceed the unearned premium llability (net of reinsurance) less related deferred acquisition costs, then the
unearned premium liability is deemed to be deficient. Any deficiency arising from the test is recognised in profit or loss with the
corresponding impact on the balance sheet recognised first through the write down of deferred acquisition costs for the relavant
portfalio of contracts, with any remaining balance being recognised on the balance sheet as an unexpired risk liabllity. The test is
performed at the level of a porifolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and that are managed together as a single
portfalio.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLICABLE TO OTHER ACTIVITIES

K. LEASES

Properties, motor vehicles and equipment of the Company are leased under non-canceliable [ease agreements, which are measured
under NZ IFRS 16. Most leases are subject to annual review and, where appropriate, a right of renewal has been incorporated into the
lease agreements. There are no options to purchase the relevant assets on expiry of the lease.

Previously, leases of property, motor vehicies and equipment were classified as either finance leases or operating [eases. From 1 July
2019, teases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability from the date the Company has the right to use
the asset. See Note 1Bl above for details on the impact of the change. .

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured as the present value of lease payments aver the term of the agreement

that are not paid at that date. Lease liabilities include the following lease payments:

B fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable, and

@ variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index o¢ rate applied as at the
transition date.

The lease term is determined as the non-canceilable period of a lease, considering any options to extend or early terminate the lease

that the Company reasonably expects to exercise.

The fease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would
have to pay to botrow the funds necessaty to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
enviranment with similar terms, security ang conditions,

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

B ideniifies the relevant risk-free yield curve for the lease and lease term; and

B applies a margin to the risk<free rate that refiects the credit risk which reflects the rate at which it could borrow from external
markets. The margin has been identified by taking an average of those applied in external markets by entities with a similar credit
rating issuing debt for durations which are consistent with the terms of leases held by the Company.

The Company is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost representing the time value of money is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period. The discount rate applied is unchanged from that applied at the initial recognition of the lease,
unless there are material changes to the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

g the initial measurement of iease liability; adjusted for

B anylease paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
m  any initial direct costs; and

B restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated aver the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

L. TAXATION

. Income tax

income tax expense far a reporting period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recoghnised in equity.

Current tax expense is the expectad tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous financial periods. Deferred tax expense/credit is the change in deferred tax assets and liabliities batween the reporting
periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method for temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, except in the following

circumstances when no deferred tax asset or liability is recognised:

® temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not
affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss;

m  temporary differences betwaen the carrying amount and tax bases of invesiments in subsidiaries where it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

m iemporary differences relating to the initial recognition of goodwill.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the cartying amount of assets
and liahilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that futuze taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.




Il. Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recoghised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amaunt of GST
incurred is not recoverable. In these circumstances GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The nat amount of the GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Infand Revenue
Department is included as part of other receivables and payables on the balance sheet.

M. INVESTMENTS

Investments comprise assets held to back insurance liabilities (also referred fo as technical reserves) and assets that represent
shareholdet's funds. All investments are managed and performance evaluated on a fair value basis for both external and internal
reporting purposes in accordance with a documented risk management strategy,

All investments are designated as fair value through profit or Joss upon initial recognition. They are initially recorded at fair value
(being the cost of acquisition excluding transaction costs) and are subseguently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date.
Changes in the fair value are recognised as realised or unrealised investment gains or losses in profit or loss. Purchases and sales of
investments are recognised on a trade date basis, being the date on which a commitment is made to purchase or sell the asset.
Transaction costs for purchases of investments are expensed as incurred. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive
future cash flows from the assets have expired, or have been transferred, and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have transferred. .

For securities traded in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted mid-markat prices at the current reporting
date. For securities traded in a market that is not active, valuation technigues are used based on market observable inputs, Ina
limited number of instances, valuation technigues are based on non-market observable inputs,

Investment revenue is brought to account on an accruals hasis. Revenue on investment in equity securities is deemed to accrue on
the date the dividends/distributions are declared, which for listed equity securities is deemed to be the ex-dividend date.

N. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investment in subsidiaries is initially recognised at cost {fair value of consideration provided plus directly attributable costs) and is
subsequently carriad at the lower of cost and recoverable amount by the Company. Costs incurred in investigating and evaluating an
acquisition: up to the point of formal commitment to an acquisition are expensed as incurred. Where the carrying value exceeds the
recoverable amount, an impairment charge Is recognised in profit or loss which can subsequently be reversed in certain conditions.

Where an additicnal interest is purchased in an existing subsidiary, the acquisition is treated as a transaction hetween owners and has
no impact on the statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend income from these investments Is brought to account on an accruals basis, Dividend revenue is acerued on the date the
dividends are declared.

0. DERIVATIVES
The Consolidated entity uses a variety of derivatives to manage various risks. Derivatives are used solely to manage risk exposure and
are not used for trading ot speculation.

Derivatives are Initially recognised at fair value {(generally the transaction price; the fair value of the consideration given or received) on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. The fair value is
determined by reference to current market quotes {current bid price for derlvatives presented as asssts and the current ask price for
derivatives presented as liabilities) or generally accepted valuation principles. The derivatives become favourable {assets) or
unfavourable (lizbilities) as a result of fluctuations in market rates relative to their terms. Transaction costs for purchases of
derivatives are expensed as incurred and presented in the statement of comprehensive income as investment expenses on assets
backing insurance Habilities and fee basaed, corporate and other expenses far assets representing sharaholder's funds.

L. Investment operations

Ali of the derivatives managed in conjunction with the investment operations are recognised on the balance sheet (presented together
with the underlying investiments} at fair value with movements in fair value being recoghised as part of investment income in profit or
loss. None of the derivatives are designated for hedge accounting. This matches the accounting for the derivatives with the
accounting for the underlying investments.

il. Corporate treasury operations

Berivatives are used to hedge exposure to foreign currency and interest rate moveiments in relation to corporate treasury transactions,
including interest bearing liabilities with the derivative being recognised on the halance sheet at fair value and movements in fair value
being recognised in profit or loss, The derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive, or as liahilities when the fair
value is negative. Nane of the derivatives are designated for hedge accounting.

P. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other recelvables are measured at amortised cost reflecting the net recoverable amounts inclusive of GST. The amounts
are discounted where the time valie of money effect is material.

On initial recognition of trade and other receivables an assessment of expected credit losses is performed and ameounts provided for
where required with the impalrment charge recognised in profit or loss, These expected credit losses are then assessed on an ongoing
basis. Receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are not required 1o be assessed for lifetime expacted credit losses under
NZ IFRS 8, however amounts are provided for where credit risks are present.
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Q. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost which is the fair value of consideration provided plus incidental costs diractly
attributable to the acquisition.

All itams of plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment charges.
Depreciation s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets less any residual value over the estimated
usefui economic life. The useful economic life for office and other aquipment is 3 to 15 years.

The carrying amount of each class of plant and equipment is reviewed each reporting date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying value of a ¢class may be impaired. If any impairment is indicated or exists, the item.is tested for impairment
by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset or its cash generating unit to the carrying value. An impairment charge is
recognised whenever the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss and may
be reversed where there has heen an indication that the loss may no longer exist and/or there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

The net gain or loss an disposal of plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds.

R. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transfetred for the acquisition is the fair
valua of the assets transferred, the equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The
consideration includes the fair value of any asset or lability resuiting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

[dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured at fair value on
the acquisition date. Any non-controlling interest is measured, on a transaction-hy-transaction basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the fair vaiue of the identifiable assets and liabilities.

Acquisition related cosis are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is cantingent upon some future event of citcumstance, the estimated amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value at the date of exchange. When the contingent consideration is classified as
a liability, the impact on any subsequent changes in fair value is recognised as profit or loss in the statemant of comprehensive
income.

Whare the initial accounting for a business combination is determined only provisionally by the first reporting date afier acquisition
date, the business combination is accounted for using those provisional values. Any subsequent adjustments to those pravisional
values are recognised within 12 months of the acquisition date and are applied effective from the acquisition date.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests, where the Company retains control, are treated as transactions between equity
holders. Therefore, any difference batween the acquisition cost of the non-cantrolling interests and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests is recognised as an Increase or decrease in equity.

S, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

. Acquired intangible assets

Acguired intangible assets are initially recarded at their cost at the date of acquisition being the fair value of the consideration
provided and, for assets acquired separately, incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Intangible assets with finite
useflt tives are amortised on a straight line basis {unless the pattern of usage 'of the henefits is significantly different) over the
estimated useful lives of the assets being the period in which the related benefits are expected to be realised (shorter of legal duration
and expected economic life). Amortisation rates and residual values are reviewed annuaily and any changes are accounted for
prospectively.

The carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed each reparting date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying value may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the item is tested for impairment by comparing the
recoverable amount of the asset or its cash generating unit to the carrying value. Where the recoverable amount is determined by the
value in use, the prajected net cash fiows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate. For assels with indefinite useful lives, the
recoverability of the carrying value of the assets is reviewed for impairment at each repotting date, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. An impairment charge is recognised when the carrying value exceeds the
calculated recoverable amount. Impairment charges are recognised in profit or loss and may be reversed where there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

Ii. Software development expenditure

Software development expenditure that meets the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset is capitalised on the balance sheet
and amortised over its expected useful life, subject to impairment testing. Costs incurred in researching and evaluating a project up 10
the point of formal commitment to a project are treated as research costs and are expensed as incurred.,

The capitalised costs are amottised on a straight line basis over the period following compietion of a project or implementation of part

of a project. The recoverability of the carrying amount of the asset is assessed in the same manner as for acquired intangible assets
with finite useful lives.
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T. GOODWILL

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net identiflabte assets and
contingent liabilities acquired and subsequently presented net of any impairment charges. Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
July 2004 has been carried forward on the basis of its deemed cost being the net carrying amount as at that date.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Units (CGUs), The carrying value of goodwill is tested
for impairment at each reporting date.

Where the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recoghised in profit o loss and cannot
subseguently be reversed. The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined by the present value of the estimated future cash flows
by using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the risks spegific to the CGUs.

At the date of disposal of a business, atiributed goodwill is used to calculate the gain or loss on disposal.

U. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received. The amounts are not discounted because the effect of the time value of money is not material.

V. ONEROUS CONTRACTS PROVISION
A provision is recognised for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of masting the ohligations under the contract.

W. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

L. Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries {including bonuses) and annual leave are recognised at the nominal amounts unpaid at the repotting
date using remuneration rates that are expected to ba paid when these liabiities are settled.

Il. Share based incentive arrangements
Share based remuneration is provided in different forms to eligible employees. All of the arrangements are equity settfed share based
payments.

The fair vaiue at grant date {the date at which the employer and the employee have a shared understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement) is determined for each equity settled share based payment using a valuation model which excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions. This fair value does not change over the life of the instrument. At each reporting date
during the vesting period (the petiod during which related employment services are provided), and upen the final vesting or axpiry of
the equity instruments, the total accumulated expense is revised hased on the fair value at grant date and the latest estimate of the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on non-market vesting conditions only, and taking into account the
expired portion of the vesting period. Changes in the total accumulated expense from the previous reporting date are recognised in
profit or loss with a correspanding movement in an equity reserve. Upan exercise of the relevant instruments, the balance of the share
based remuneration reserve relating to those instruments is transferred within equity.

The different ireatment of market and non-market vesting conditions means that if an equity instrument does not vest because a
participant ceases relevant employment then the accumulated expense charged in refation to that participant is reversed, but if an
equity instrument does not vest only because a market condition is not met, the expense is not reversed.

To satisfy obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on market at or near grant date
of the relevant arrangement and held in trust. This cost is initially recognised as a prepayment and then amortised through an equity
reserve over the vesting period of the related instruments to match against the recognition of the refated expense.

Il Superannuation :
For defined contribution superannuation plans, obligations for contributions are recognised in profit or loss as they become payable,
For defined benefit superannuation plans, the net financial position of the plans is recognised on the balance sheet and the movement
in the net financial position is recognised in profit or loss, except for remeasurements of defined beneflt plans (experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions), which are recognised in other comprehensive income and {expense). An appropriate provision
is made for the unfunded defined benefit plan. Pensions paid are charged against this provision.

X. FOREIGN CURRENCY

I. Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial records are measured using the currengy of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (functional currency). The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the presentation currency of
the Cansolidated entity.

Il. Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreigh currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles at reporting date are transiated to the functionat
cutrency using reporting date exchange rates. Resuiting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTE 2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
In the process of applying the significant accounting policies, certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions are used, and
certain judgements are made.

The estimates and related assumptions are based on experience and cther factors that are considered to be reasonabile, the results of
which form the basis for judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
petiod in which the estimates are revised, and future periods if refevant. The approach to key estimates and judgements for this
repotting period are the same as the 20192 financial year, unless otherwise stated.

The areas where the estimates and assumptions involve a high degree of judgement or complexity and are considered significant to
the financial statements, listed together with reference to the notes to the financiat statements where more information is provided,
are.

@ insurance contracts related:

—  claims, refer to note §;
—  reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims, refer to noie 9; and
— liahility adequacy test, refer 1o note 11.B.

There are other ameunts relating to insurance contracts that are based on allocation methodologies supported by
assumptions (e.g. deferrad acquisition costs). The estimates relate to past events, do not incorporate forward looking
considerations, and the methodology supporting them generally do not change from year to year.

B other;
— intangible assets and goodwill impairment testing, refer to notes 15 and 186;
— acquired intangible assets initial measurement and determination of useful life, refer to note 15; and
—  income tax and related asseis and liabilities, refer to note 7;

#  Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic:

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has increased the estimation uncertainty in the preparation of these financial statements. The
Consolidated entity has developed various accounting estimates in these financial statements based on forecasts of economic
conditions which reflect expectations and assumptions as at 30 June 2020 about future events that the Directors belicve are
reasonable in the circumstances. There is a considerable degree of judgement involved in preparing forecasts. The underiying
assumptions are also subject to uncertainties which are often outside the controf of the Consolidated entity. Accordingly, actual
economic conditions may be different from those forecast since anticipated events may not occur as expected, and the effect of those
differences may significantly impact accounting estimates included in these financial statements.

The significant accounting estimates particularly impacted by these associated uncertainties are predominantly related to the
valuation of the outstanding claims liability, recoverable amount assessments of non financial assets, fair value measurement of
investments and expected credit losses for both non insurance and insuyance related receivables.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on each of these accounting estimates is discussed further below. Readers should carefully
consider thase disclosures in light of the inherent uncertainty dascribed above,

+  Qutstanding claims liabHity

The Company's insurance portfolic has experienced some impact as a result of COVID-19 predominantly through the motor portfolios,
tandlord cover and husiness interruption cover, Management have estimated the expected losses within these portfolios in the
outstanding claims liability, including an appropriate risk margin. There is a high degree of uncettainty related to the economic effects
of COVID-19 which over time may lead to the development of costs higher than the outstanding claims liability reported. Refer to Note
8 for further details on outstanding claims liability.

+  intangible assets and goodwill impairment ‘ .

The assumptions undarpinning the value in use calculations used o evaluate the supportahility of goodwill and intangible assets were
adjusted to reflect reasonable estimates of the impact of COVID-19 and the increased sisks associated with the estimated cash flows.
Whilst there is no impairment at 30 June 2020, there is a heightenad level of uncertainty around key assumptions in the current
environment. This has the potential to materially impact the value in use assessment moving forward and potentially the carrying value
of the respective intangible assets and goodwill. Refer to Notes 15 and 186 for further details on intangible assets and goodwill.

. Fair value measurement of investments

The Consolidated entity's investments are desighated at fair value through profit and foss, and for the vast majority of the invesiments,
the fair value is determined based on observable market data. This measurement basis has not changed as a result of COVID-19,

Where readily available market data is not available to determine fair vaiue, then a mark to model approach ts adopted. Judgement is
required in both the selection of the model and inputs used. The investments which are subject to valuation using unobservable
inputs are disclosad in the Consolidated entity's fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 12 for further details on investments.




«  Expected credit losses

The impact of COVID-19 on the recoverability of receivables from (re)insurance and non insurance contracts have been considered.
While the methodologies and assumptions applied in the base expected credit loss (ECL) calculations remained unchanged from those
applied in the prior financial vear, the Consolidated entity has incorporated estimates, assumptions and judgements specific to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the associated customer support packages provided. Whilst no material recoverability issues
have been identified, there is a risk that the economic impacts of COVID-18 could be deeper or more prolonged than anticipated, which
could result in higher credit losses than those modelled under the base case. Refer to Note 13 for further details.

. Defarred Tax Asset

The reported deferred tax asset substantially comprises a historically incurred tax loss attributable to the Canterbury earthquake
events in 2010/11.This reported fax loss asset has been decreasing as taxable income has been generated in subsequent years. The
recoverability of the asset is continually assessed based on the latest forecasts of future profitability, which have taken into
consideration the potential ongoing financial impacts of COVID-19. It is anticipated that the tax loss will be fully absorbed within the
foreseeable future. Refer to Note 7 for further details on deferred tax asset.

+  Liability Adequacy Test
Liahility adequacy test calculation includes an allowanca for uncertainty of future claims following COVID-19, Refer to Note 118 for
further details on liability adequacy test.

NOTE 3. RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT CATEGOR|ES AND RISK MITIGATION

The Board and senior management of the Group have developed, implemented and maintain a Risk Management Strategy (RMS)
across the Group. The Consolidated entity complies with the risk management policies of the Group. The policies form the
Consotidated entity's procedures, processes and controls that manage material risks, financial and non-financial, likely to be faced hy
the Consolidated entity.

CoviD-19

The financial and social impacts of COVID-19 continue to emerge and will further develop over the coming year. Their extent and
duration are difficult to forecast, and remain dependent on many factors. These include the extent to which the virus persists, the
efficacy of government and central bank responses both locally and globally and the impact prolonged uncertainty has on consumaer
and business sentiment.

The immediate impacts on the Consolidated entity have been from market volatility creating lower investment returns and influencing
capital management activities, the acute impact on the financial position of some of our customers and the adaptation in working
practices amongst our employees, business partners and suppliers. As impacts of the virus and associated responses evoive, so tco
will the associated risks and the Consclidated entity is committed to appropriately managing those risks at all levels,

Some of the key specific risks and the Consotidated entlty's response to them are as follows:

s Capital and market risk — The Consolidated entity retains a strong capital position. However, COVID-19 has given tise to Increased
levels of market volatility and credit risk (both in the investment pottfolio and with our customers and suppliers} that has required
more active capital management approach. Initiatives to achieve this include more frequent assessments of capital adequacy to
account for larger and more rapid investment market movements and further capital stress testing against COVID-19 reiated
risks. Capital levels will continue to be very closely monitored.

B Regulatory risk ~ Regulators have baen closely engaged on the Consolidated entity's response to COVID-19, Sector-wide
regulatory engagement has also increased, particularly around financial stability and dividend policy (Reserve Bank of New
Zealand) and operational changes and decisions that have customer impacts (Financial Matkets Authority). The Consolidated
entity is engaging with regulators regularly and will continue with its aligned and proactive approach to suppotting customers,
business resilience and continuity measures.

a Customer risk ~ The Consolidated entity understands the difficulties many of our customers are facing during this time and the
risks this presents to our business. A range of support measures have been made available through this period to customers who
are expetiencing genuine need. These support measures will be reassessed as needed.

B Operational risk - The rapid migration of the vast majority of the employees of the Consolidated entity from an office-based work
environment 1o working from home heightened some risks. These include technology and cyber related risk as well as fraud and
employee health and welibeing. These risks are well understood, and policies are in place to mitigate them. This risk is reducing
as some employees return to the office, and a transition to variable working arrangements ensues.

e Insurance risk - The broad potentiai impact of COVID-19 on our business, customers and reinsurers, directly and indirectly, is still
to ba fully realised. Understanding the reinsurance impacts in both increased costs and reduced coverage, including the impact to
our retail pricing and products, will take some time to he fully understood. In addition, economic uncertainty is likely to impact
some products through increased claims exposure. These risks are actively managed, and monitoring is constantly in place for
emergence of new areas of risk. :

1. Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is managed by the Leadership Team Risk Committee with Board oversight. Key elements in the management of strategy
and strategic risk include the strategy development and strategic planning processes and associated oversight arrangements. Market
trends and changes in the Consolidated entity's operating environment are reviewed at least annually against the strategy and
strategic priotities. Progress against strategic priorities is monitared on a monthly basis with deeper review, as applicable, on a
quarterly basis. Strategic risks are included in the Company's enterprise risk profile.
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. Insurance Risk

A key risk from operating in the general insurance industry is the exposure to insurance risk arising from underwriting and pricing
general insurance contracts. The insurance contracts transfer risk to the insurer by indemnifying the policyholders against adverse
effects atising from the occurrence of specified but unforeseen future events, There is a risk that the exposure of the item insured is
under or over-estimated or that the actual amount of claims ta be paid in refation to contracts will be different to the amount estimated
at the time a product was designed, priced and sold. The Company is exposed to this risk as the price for a contract must be set
before the losses relating to the product are known. As such, the insurance business involves inherent uncertainty. The Company also
faces ather risks relating to the conduct of the general insurance business including, but not limited to, financial risks, reputational
and capital risks.

Afundamental part of the Consolidated entity's overall risk management approach is the effective governance and management of the
risks that impact the amount, timing and certainty of cash flows arising from the underwriting, pricing and design of insurance
contracts.

Insurance activities primarily involve the underwriting of risks and the management of claims as well as the praduct design, product
pricing, reserving and concentration risk (refer below). A disciplined approach to risk management is adopted rather than a premium
volume or market share orientated appreach. It is believed that this approach provides the greatest fong term likelihood of being able
to meet the ohjectives of all stakeholders.

a. INSURANCE PROCESSES '
The key processes to mitigate insurance risk inciude, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Acceptance and pricing of risk

The underwriting of large numbers of less than fully correlated individual risks across a range of classes of insurance husiness aides to
reduce the variability in overall claims experience over time. Maximum limits and risk appetite critetta are set for the acceptance of
risk both on an individual contract basis and for classes of business and specific risk groupings. Management information systems are
maintained and provide up-to-date, reliable data on the risks to which the business is exposed at any point in time. Efforis are made,
including plain language policy tarms, to ensure there is no misalignment between what policyholders perceive will be paid when a
policy is initially sold and what is actually paid when a claim is made.

Statistical models that combine historical and projected data are used to calculate premiums and monitor claims patterns for each
class of business. The data used includes historical pricing and claims analysis for each class of business as well as current
developments in the respective markets and classes of business. All data used is subject to rigorous verification and reconciliation
processes. The models incorporate consideration of prevailing market conditions.

ii. Claims management and provisioning

Initial claims determination is managed by claims staff with the requisite degree of experience and competence with the assistance,
where appropriate, of a loss adjustor or other party with specialist knowledge. It is the Company's policy to respond to and settie all
claims quickly whenever possible and to pay claims fairly, based on policyholders' full entitlements.

Glaims provisions are established using actuarial valuation models and include a risk margin for uncertalnty (refer to the claims note
8).

fii. Reinsurance
Refer to reinsurance risk section 11 below for further details.

b. CONCENTRATIONS OF INSURANCE RiSK

Concentration risk is particularly relevant in the case of catastrophes, usually natural disasters, which generally resultin a
concentration of affected policyholders over and above the norm and which constitutes the largest Individuat potential financial loss.
Catastrophe losses are an inherent tisk of the general insurance industry that have contributed, and will continue to contribute, to
potentially material year-to-year fiuctuations in the results of operations and financial position. Catastrophes are caused by various
natural events including earthquakes, hailstorms, storms and high winds. The Company is also exposed to certain human-made
catastrophic avents such as industrial accidents and building coltapses. The nature and leve! of catasirophes in any period cannot be
predicted accurately but can he estimated through the utilisation of predictive models. The Company actively limits the aggregate
insurance exposura to catastrophe losses in regions that are subject to high levels of natural catastrophes.

Each year, the Company sets its tolstance for concentration tisk and purchases reinsurance in excess of these tolerancges, Vatious
models are used 1o estimate the impact of different potential natural disasters and other catastrophes. The tolerance for
cancentration risk is used to determine the Maximum Event Retention {(MER) which is the maximum net exposure to insurance risk
determined appropriate for any single event with a given probability. The selected MER is also determined based on the cost of
purchasing the reinsurance and capital efficlency.
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Specific processes for monitoring identified key concentrations are set out below.

RISK SOURCE OF CONCENTRATION RISK MANAGEMENT MEASURES

An accumulation of risks arising from a Insured property concentrations Accumulation risk modelling, reinsurance

natural peril protection

Aldarge property loss Fire or collapse affecting one buildingora  Maximum acceptance limits, property risk
group of adjacent buildings grading, reinsurance protection

Multiple liability retentions being involved in Response by a large number of policies to  Purchase of reinsurance clash protection
the same event the one event :

Ili. Reinsurance Risk
Reinsurance is used to limit exposure to large singie claims as well as accumulation of claims that arise from the same or similar
events.

Risks underwritten are rainsured in order to limit exposure to losses, stabllise eatnings, protect capital resources and ensure efficient
control and spread of the risks underwritten.

The use of reinsurance iniroduces credit risk. The management of reinsurance includes the monitaring of reinsurers’ credit risk and
controls the exposure to reinsurance counterparly defauit.

The amount of reinsurance purchased is determined by reference to a modelied probable maximum loss (PMLY. Natural perils are
inherently uncertain, which presents model risk, As a resuit, the loss from an actuat event could exceed the modelled PML.

The Consolidated entity is exposed to a variety of financial risks in the normai course of business; market risk {includ ing foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity tisk and capital risk.

IV, Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of adverse movements in market prices (equities, derivatives, interest rate, foreign exchange, etc.) or
ihappropriate concentration within the investment funds. All non-New Zealand dollar denominated securities are hedged back to NZ
dollars, therefore the relevant market risks are interest rate risk and price risk.

a. INTEREST RATE RISK

i. Nature of the risks and how managed

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from an unfavourable movement it market interest rates, Fixed interest rate assets and
liabilities are exposed to changes in carrying vaiue derived from mark-to-market revaluations. Financial assets and liabllities with
floating interest rates create exposure to cash flow volatility.

The underwriting of general Insurance contracts creates exposure to the risk that interest rate movements may materiatly impact the
value of the insurance liabilities. Movements in interest rates should have minimal impact on the Insurance profit due to the
Consolidated entity's policy of investing in assets backing insurance liabilities principally in fixed interest securities broadly matched to
the expected payment pattern of the insurance liabilities. Movements in investment Income on assats hacking insurance liabilities
broadly offset the impact of movements in discount rates on the insurance liabilities other than the changes in credit spreads on the
fixed interest securities which are expected to reverse on maturity.

fi. Sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis provided in the following table demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
assumptions remain unchanged, In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. The sensitivities do not
include interdependencies among variables, but rather show isolated interest rate movements.

The invastments in interest bearing secutities are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. Movements in market interest tates
impact the price of the securities (and hence their fair value measurement) and so would impact profit or loss. The impact from the
measurement of the interest bearing securities held at reporting date of a change In interest rates at reporting date by +1% or -1%
(e.g. a move from 4% to 5% or to 3%) on prafit before tax, net of related derivatives, is shown In the following table:

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

$000 $000

knpact to Impact to

profit profit
Investments - interest bearing securities and related interest rate derivatives +1% {20,077 (14,627)
-1% 20,782 15,228

The majority of the interest bearing securities are expecied to be held to maturity and so movements in the fair value are expected to
reverse upon maturity of the instruments,

b, PRICE RISK

i, Nature of the risk and how managed

Price risk is the tisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices
{other than those arising from interest rate or foreign exchange tisk}, whether those changes are caused hy factors specific to the
individual financial Instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded on the market. The Consolidated
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entity has exposure to equity price risk through its investment in equities {through certain trusts) and the use of equity related
derivative contracts,

H. Sensitivity
The impact from the measurement of the investments held at reporting date of a change in equity values at reporting date by +10% or
-1.0% on profit before tax, net of related derivatives, is shown in the table below:

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2049

$000 $000

Investments - Trust securities and equity derivatives +10% 7,845 14,814
- 10% (7,710} (14,281)

V, Credit Risk

a. NATURE OF THE RISK AND HOW MANAGED

Credit risk is the risk arising from a counterparty’s failure to meet its obligations in accordance with the agreed terms. These
counterparties include investrents, reinsurers, derivative counterpartios and premium debtors. The Consolidated entity's credit risk
arises predominantly from investment activities, reinsurance activities and dealings with intermediaries. The Consolidated entity's
credit risk appetite is approved by the IAG Board and the Group has a Credit Risk Policy which is congslstent with the IAG Board's risk
appetite and also approved by the IAG Board. The policy outlines the framework and procedures in place to ensure an adequate and
appropriate level of monitoring and management of credit quality throughout the Group.

Group Treasury is responsible for ensuring that the policies governing the management of credit quality risk are properly implemented.
All new, changed and continuing credit risk exposures must be approved in accordance with the Group's approval authority framework.

Concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics. At the reporting date, with the
exception of the reinsurance recoverabie from the Group captive reinsurers, there are no material concentrations of credit risk in the
investment porifolios as the Consolidated entity transacts with a large number of counterparties without any individual counterparty
having a material outstanding balance except for possibie exposure to the major banks in New Zealand. With regard to the Group
captive reinsurers, uliimately, the Consclidated entity's exposure is to the external reinsurer with whom the captives have placed the
Group's reinsurance programma.

h. CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE
i. Premium and reinsurance recoveties on paid claims receivable
The maximum exposure to credit risk as ai reporting date is the carrying amount of the receivables on the balance sheat.

An ageing analysis for premium receivable and reinsurance recoveries receivable is provided here. The amounts are aged according to
their original due date,

CONSOLIDATED
NOT OVERDUE (OVERDUE TOTAL
<30 days 30-120 days »>120 days
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2020
Premium receivable 860,602 16,860 3,975 3,229 884,666
Pravision for lapses {2,685) (1,434) {1.311) {1,453) (6,883)
Net balance 857,917 15426 2,664 1,776 877,783
Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims 34,424 - - - 34,424
Net balance 34,424 - - - 34,424
Other trade debtors 16,795 - - - 16,795
Net halance 16,795 - - - 16,795
2018

Premium receivable 861,609 110 2,646 1,232 865,597
Provision for lapses (2,199} {37) {879) (549} (3,664)
Net balance 859,410 73 1,767 683 861,933
Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims 43,813 - - - 43,813
Net balance 43,{3_}_% - - - 43.8%
Other trade debtors 17,648 - = - 17,648
Net balance 17,648 - - - 17,648
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A sighificant portion of the premium receivable balance relates to policies which are paid on a monthly instalment basis. It is important
to note that the non-payment of amounts due under such arrangements altows for the cancellation of the related insurance contract
eliminating both the credit risk and insurance risk for the unpald amounts. Upon cancellation of a policy the outstanding premium
receivable and revenue is reversed.

The provision for lapses at reporting date for receivables balances totalled $6.9 million (2019 - $3.7 million}. The nat movement in the
aggregated provision for the current period was a $3.2 million increase (2019 - $1.8 million decreass).

il. Reinsurance recoveries receivable an outstanding claims

Reinsurance arrangements mitigate insurance risk but expose the Consolidated entity to eredit risk. Reinsurance is placed with
companies based on an evaluation of the financial strength of the reinsurers, terms of coverage, and prics. Group's captive reinsurer
has clearly defined credit policies for the approval and management of credit risk in relation to reinsurers. Group's ¢a ptive reinsurer
monitors the financial condition of its reinsurers on an ongoing basls and petiodically reviews the reinsurers’ ability to fulfil their
obligations to the captive under respective existing and future reinsurance contracts. Some of the reinsurers are domiciled cutside of
the jurisdictions in which the Consolidated entity operates and so there is the potential for additional risk such as country risk and
transfer risk.

The level and guality of reinsurance protection is an important element in understanding the financial strength of an insurer. The
financial condition of a reinsurer is a critical deciding factor when entering into a reinsurance agreement. The longer the tail of the
direct insurance, the more important is the credit rating of the reinsurer. .

it is the Consolidated entity's policy to deal only with reinsurers with credit ratings of at least Standard & Poor's A- (or other rating
ageney equivalent) without collateralisation. Having reinsurance protection with strong reinsurers also benefits the Consolidated entity
in its regulatoty capital calculations. The capital risk charges vary with the grade of the reinsurers such that higher credit quality
reinsurance counterparties incur lower regulatory capital charges.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk relating to the reinsurahce recoveries on the cutstanding claims
batance, excluding other recoveries, based on Standard & Poor's counterparty credit ratings. These rating altocations relate to
balances accumutated from reinsurance programmes in place over a number of years and so wilk not necessarily align with the rating
allocatiens noted above for the current programme.

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED
CREDIT RATING 2020 2019
% of total % of total
AA 95 26
A 5 4
Total 100 100

No separate provision for impairment has been recognised for the reinsurance recoveries on outstanding claims balance. The actuarial
estimates include a credit risk component in the underlying balance and therefore no separate provision is required.,

fii. Investments
The Consolidated entity is exposed to credit risk from investments in third parties where the Consolidated entity holds debt and similar
securities issued by those entities.

The credit risk relating to investments is monitored and assessed, and maximuim exposures are limited. The maximum exposure to
credit risk loss as at reporting date is the carrying amount of the investments on the balance sheet as they are measured at fair value.
The tvestments comprising assets backing insurance liabilities are restricted to investment grade securities.

The following table pravidas information regarding the credit risk relating to the interest bearing investments based on Standard &
Poor's counterparty credit ratings.

CREDIT RATING PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

% of total % of total

AAA 7 4
AA 23 89
A - 7
Total 100 100

VL. _Liquidity Risk
a. NATURE QF THE RISK AND HOW MANAGED

Licuidity risk arises where there are inadequate funds to meet liabilities as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises from loss of access to
funding and liquid assets portfolio including investments, reinsurance and trade assets, Ligquidity facilitates the ability to mest
expected and unexpected requirements for cash. The liquidity position is derived from operating cash flows, investment partfolios and
access to outside sources of liquidity such as bank lines of credit, reinsurance arrangements and other sources,

The Consolidated entity complies with Group liguidity risk management practices, which include a Group policy, and has the framework
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and procadures in place to ensure an adequate and appropriate level of monitoring and management of liquidity.

Underwriting insurance contracts exposes the Consolidated entity to liquidity risk through the abligation to make payments of unknown
amounts on unknown dates. The assels backing insurance liahilities consist predominantly of governmant securities (the most liquid
of securities) and other very high quality securities which can generally be readily soid ot exchangad for cash. The assets are managed
50 as to effectively match the maturity profile of the assets with the expected pattern of claims payments. The debt securities are
restricted Lo investment grade securities with cencentrations of investments managed by various criteria including: issuet, industry,
geography and credit rating.

b. LIQUIDITY RISK EXPOSURE
The breakdown of the fixed term investments s provided by expected maturity. Actual maturities may differ from expected maturities
because certain counterparties have the right to call or prepay certain obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

A maturity analysis of the estimated net discounted outstanding claims liability based on the remaining term to payment at the
reporting date and the investments that have a fixed term is provided in the table below.

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED

NET DISCOUNTED

. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
MATURITY ANALYSIS LIABILITY INVESTMENTS
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
Floating interest rate {at call) - - 8,231 5,302
Within 1 year or less 344,549 287,332 91,695 173,350
Within 1 to 2 years 55,657 45,323 394,588 19,350
Within 2 to 3 years 23,930 23,088 371,807 507,946
Within 3 to 4 years 14,739 16,988 225,380 106,694
Within 4 to b years 10,989 10,111 34,232 140,312
Over B years 13,444 314,916 50,878 23,830
Total 463,308 397,756 1,473,811 976,784

Timing of future claim payments is inherently uncertain. The table above represents estimated timing.

Vii. Operational Risk

Opoerational risk is the risk of loss resulting from the actions ar behaviours of people, inadequate or failed internal processes and
systems or from external events. Operational risk can impact other risk categories. When controls fail, an operational risk incident
can cause injury, damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to fina ncial 10ss, The Company does not aim
to eliminate all operational risks but manages these by initiating an appropriate control framework and by monitoring and managing
the potential risks.

The Group Risk Management Strategy (RMS) includes consideration of operational risk. Operational risk is identified and assessed on
an ongoing basis and the capital management strategy includes consideration of operational risk. Management and staff are
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing operational risks in accordance with their roles and responsibilities. The Group
has an internal audit function which monitors processes and procedures surrounding operational risk.

VIl Regulatory Risk and Compliance

Regulatory and Compliance risk is defined as the Tailure or inability to identify and comply with applicable laws, regulations, standards
or codes excluding failure to adhere to internal policies/proceduras or meeting contractual obligations. The Group Regulatory Risk and
Compliance Framework, Group Regulatory Risk and Compllance Policy and the IAG NZ Regulatory Risk and Compliance Programme set
out the principles and framework components to achieve compliance as welt as the roles and responsibilities in risk governance.
Regulatory tisk and compliance Is managed through the active monitoring and identification of regulatory and compliance risks and
obligations, regular assessment of the impact of those tisks and obligations to the Consolidated entity and the implementation of
appropriate controls, assurance activity and reporting to mitigate regulatory and compkiance risk.

IX. Customer Risk
Customer risk is defined as the risk of falling to meet customer expectations teading to lower customer satisfaction, retention rates
and new business opportunities.

1AG NZ Is commitied to delivering positive customer expetiences and value through the provision of products and services suited to
customers’ needs.

IAG NZ manages customer risk by applying a customer lens to all processes and maintaining customars at the heart of everything we
do. Dedicated customer forums such as the Group Customer Conduct Coungil are designed to capture, analyse and use customer
feedback to enhance products, services and propositions




X. Culture and Conduct Risk

Cuiture and conduct risk is defined as the risk that employee behaviours are consistently contrary to our Purpose, our Spirit or our

Code of Ethics and Conduct or do not otherwise meet reasonable community expectations.

IAG NZ's strategic obfective is to be a customer centric organisation underpinned by ethical and sustainable decision making. JAG NZ
recognises that the mindsets and behaviours of its people will hkelp achieve objectives and that a culture clearly aligned with desired
outcomes is fundamental to the success in building a stronger future for IAG NZ and its stakeholders.

1AG NZ continues to be committed to buitding and maintaining a strong risk culture. FAG NZ is focused on aligning risk culture,

organisational cukture and conduct risk and underpinning this with the embedment of Group-wide accountability, reward and

recognition programmes. Both organisational and risk culture are measured, monitored and reported regularly to the People and
Remuneration Commitiee and Risk Committee respectively. Risk specific behaviours are aligned to the Group Code of Ethics and
Conduct and the Group continues to strengthen its articulation of risk behaviours through its risk transformation programme, Project

Q.

Conduct and culture of New Zealand financial services entlities continues as a focus of the Financial Markets Authority (FMA) and
Reserve Bank of New Zealand {RBNZ), with all nonlife insurars being required to review their conduct and culture by 31 Octobher 2019
following thematic reviews of registered hanks and licensed life insurers carried out in 2018. IAG NZ's conduct and culture review was
approved by the Board in October 2019 and has been provided to the FMA and RBNZ for oversight. It containg an action plan to
improve IAG NZ's conduct and culture arrangements, which has been progressed by a resourced programme of work,

Xl. Capital Risk

The Consolidated entity has a Capital Management Plan which references the Board's targeted Capital Buifer and the trigger points for

Management's actions.

The Capitat Buffer is determined with reference to the Board Capltal Risk Appetite statement.

Capital is continually monitored and stressed annually in the Board’s annual review.

NOTE 4. ANALYSIS OF INCOME

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. GENERAL INSURANCE REVENUE
Gross written premium 2,904,366 2,835,760 2,904,366 2,835,760
Movement in unearnad premium liability (22,191) {59,762) {22,1.94) (69,762)
Premium revenue 2,882175 2775998 2,882175 2,775,908
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 709,852 612,172 709,852 612,172
Reinsurance commission revenue 285,095 272271 285095 272271
Total general insurance revenue 3,877,122 3,660,441 3,877,122 3660,441
B. INVESTMENT INCOME
Dividend revenue 903 1,915 903 1,915
Interest revenue 25471 35,546 25,471 35,546
Teust ravenue 8,137 5,224 8437 5,224
Total investment revenue 34,511 42,685 34,511 42 685
Realised net gains and (fosses) (2,389) 10,643 (2,389) 10,613
Unrealised net gains and (losses) {29,162) 22,401 (29.717) 22,174
Total investment income 2,960 75,699 2,405 75472
Represented by
Investment income on assets hacking insurance liabilities 21,094 28,401 21,094 28,401
Investment income on shareholder's funds {18,134) 47,298 {18.689) 47,071
2,960 75,699 2405 75472

Totai income
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3,880,082
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3,735,913




NOTE 5. ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000

Acquisition costs, other underwriting expenses, fee based, corporate and other expenses include the following:
Amortisation of intangible assels 2,679 23,276 2,679 23,276
Bad debts written off 99 151 99 151
Commissions 296,253 285575 296,253 285,575
Depreciation - plant and equipment and right of use assets 32,825 13,249 32,825 13,249
Directors' fees b6l 525 561 525
Operating lease costs 5,380 26,144 5,380 26,144
Loss on sale of plant and equipment 70 68 70 68
Restructuring costs* 8,386 7,048 8,386 7,048
Share baged remuneration expense 2,433 2,696 2,434 2,696
Defined contribution superannuation expense 6,869 6,735 6,869 8,735
Emplovee benefit expense 313,553 307,838 313,553 307,838
impairment - plant and equipment and right of use assets* 20,356 - 20,356 -

* Thesa items are mainly attributabie to the estimated costs and asset impairments pertaining to the intended closure of the AM| and
State retail stores.

NOTE 6. REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

PARENT CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 $000 $000 $000

Audit of the financial statements 1,608 1,624 1,608 1,624
Assuranca of regulatory returns in accordance with regulatory

requirements 113 113 113 113

Other assurance services 29 57 29 57

Total remuneration of auditor Y i3]} 1,794 1750 1,794

Other assurance services relate to assurance, limited assurance and agreed upon procedures engagements.
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NOTE 7. INCOME TAX

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
A. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current tax {69) 46 (69) 46
Deferred tax 81,300 113,359 81,300 113,359
{Over)/under provided in prior year (186) {1,337) (186} {1,337}

Income tax expense

B. INCOME TAX RECONCILIATION

The income tax for the financial year differs from the amount
caleulated on the profit before income tax, The differences are

reconciled as follows:

Profit for the year before income tax
Income tax calculated at 28% {2019-28%)

Amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating

taxable income

Effect of overseas investment tax regime
Foreign withholding tax

Non-deductible expenses

Other

income tax expense applicable to current year
Adjustment relating to prior year

thcome tax expense attributable to profit for the year

C. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Depreciation

Deferred acquisition costs
Tax losses

Other

D. IMPUTATION CREDITS

Imputation credits at the beginning of the financial year

Imputation credits attached 1o dividends received
Imputation credits at the end of the financial year

The imputation credits are available to shareholders of the Company:

Through the Company

81,045

112,068

81,045

X ! 112,068

246,908 406,808 246,452 408,581
69,134 113,906 69,006 113,842
12,037 {388) 12,037 (388)

{69) 48 (69) 46
480 586 453 586
(351) (745) (196) (881)
81,231 113,405 81,231 113,405
(186) (1,337) {186) {1,337)
81,045 112,088 81,045 112,068
10,120 3,741 10,120 3,741

(62,978) (58,189) (62,978) (58,189)

243,633 329,598 243,633 329,698
24,207 17,670 21,207 17,670

211 982 292,820 211,982 292,820

4,746 4,001 4,746 4,001

351 745 351 745
5,097 4,746 5,097 4,746
5,097 4,748 5,097 4,746
5,097 5,097 4,746

4746

Tax losses have been recognised as a deferred tax asset since it is considered prabable, based on profit forecasts, that the losses will

he offset against future taxable income.
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NOTE 8. CLAIMS

A. NET CLAIMS EXPENSE IN THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Current year ciaims relate to claim events that occurred in the current financial year. Prior year claims relate to a reassessment of the
claim gvents that occurred in all previous financial periods.

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019
Current year  Prior years Total Current year Prior yoars Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Gross claims - undiscounted 1,556,974 112,677 1,669,651 1,462,416 3,651 1,465,967
Discount {858) 10,372 9,514 (3,483) 15,418 11,935
Grass claims - discounted 1,556,116 123,049 1,679165 1,458,933 18,9269 1,477,902
Reinsurance and other recoveries -
undiscounted {580,775) {123,607) {704,382) {555,900) (48,031) (603,931)
Discount 355 {5,825) {5,470} 1,608 (9,847) {8,241}
Reinsurance and other recoveries -
discounted {580,420) (129,432} {709,852} (554,294} (57,878) (612,172)
Net claims expense 975,696 (6,383) 869,313 904,639 {38,909) 865,730

The prior years' net claims expense substantiatly periains to a revision of the expected cost of the Canterbury earthquakes that
occurred in the year ended 30 June 2011,

B. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY RECOGNISED ON THE BALANCE SHEEY

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

$000 £000

I. Composition of gross outstanding claims ltability

Gross central estimate - undiscounted 1,021,829 933,243
Claims handling costs 32,888 28,713
Risk margin 96,282 95,438
1,150,999 1,057,394
Discount to present value {3.143) {12,657)
Gross outstanding claims liabillty - discounted AL.147.856 1,044,737

The outstanding claims liability includes $320.0 million (2019 - $255.6 million) which is expected to be settled more than 12 months
from the reporting date.

H. Reconciliation of movements in discounted outstanding claims liability

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019

Relnsurance Reinsurance

and other and other
Gross recoverles Net Gross recoveries Met
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,044,737 (646,981) 397,756 1,290,433 {831,939) 458,494
Movement in the prior year cenira estimate 136,657 {130,694} 5,963 50,657 {64,019) {13,362)
Cuirent year claims incurred 1,607,752 {564,121) 943,631, 1,410,285 (531,109) 879,186
Claims paid/recoveries received (1,578,046) 672,285 {903,761) (1,723,598} 797,130 {026,468)
Movement in discounting 17,135 {10,478) 6,657 20,919 (13,5286} 7.383
Movement in risk margin : 17,621 {4,559) 13,062 {3.969) (3.518) (7.487)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,147,856 (684.,548) 463,308 1,044,737 (646,981} 387,758

29




lI. Central estimate and risk margin
a. REPORTING DATE VALUES

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019
% %

The percentage risk margin applied to the net outstanding claims llabliity (excluding Canterbury
earthquake claims) 13.2 111
The probability of adequagy of the risk margin 87.5 87.5

h. PROCESS

The outstanding claims liability is determined based on three building blocks being:
# 4 central estimate of the future cash flows;

@ discounting for the effect of the time value of meney; and

B @& risk margin for uncertainty.

. Future cash flows
The estimation of the outstanding claims liability is based on a varlety of actuarial techniques that analyse experience, trends and
other refevant factors. The expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid or not yet paid in full,
claims incurred but not enough reparted (IBNER), claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the anticipated direct and indirect
claims handling costs.

The estimation process involves using the Consolidated entity's specific data, relevant industry data and more general economic data.
Each class of business is usually examined separately and the process Involves consideration of a large number of factors, These
factors may include the risks to which the business is exposed at a point in time, claim frequencies and average ¢laim sizes, historical
trends in the incidence and development of claims reported and finalised, legal, secial and economic factors that may impact upon
each class of business, the kay actuarial assumptions set out in section IV and the impact of reinsurance and other recoveries.

Different actuarial valuation models are used for different claims types and lines of busingss. The selection of the appropriate
actuarial model takes into account the charagteristics of a claim type and class of business and the extent of the development of each
accident period.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability for the Canterbury earthquake events has been determined using a number of
techniques. Reported claims are grouped together by various factors such as claimant, risk class, land damage zone and repair or
rebuild status. Estimates of IBNR and IBNER are made based on observed average costs and development of similar claimants. The
estirmation of these claims has a greater degree of uncertainty than non sarthguake claims, including the ultimate contribution to the
cost of these events by the Earthquake Commission (EQC) in terms of its statutory liability under the provisions of the Earthguake
Commission Act 1993,

The oulstanding claims estimates make a specific allowance for the apportionment of the uftimate cost of commercial and residential
claims across the three main Canterbury carthquake events. The apportionment methadology takes into consideration land damage
information and specific engineering advice

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability for the Kaikoura earthquake event has been determined based on tha exposure of
the Consolidated entity to claims in the areas affected by the event. There is a level of uncertainty as reported claim costs continue to
deveiop but the current estimate is weli within the Consolidated entity's 2016/17 catastrophe reinsurance programme at the balance
date,

ii. Discounting
Prajected future claims payments, both gross and net of reinsurance and other recoveries, and associated claims handling costs are
discounted to a present value using appropriate risk frae discount rates.

iii. Risk margin

The central estimate of the outstanding claims liability is an estimate which is intended to contain no deliberate or conscious over or
under estimation and is commonly descrihed as providing the mean of the distribution of future cash flows. It is considered
appropriate to add a risk margin to the central estimate in order for the claims fiability to have an increased probability of adequacy.
The risk margin refers to the amount by which the liability recognised in the financial statements is greater than the actuarial central
estimate of the liability.

As at 30 June 2020, the outstanding claims liability for IAG NZ was valued by Heathcliff Neels {Fellow of the New Zealand Society of
Actuaries}. There were no qualifications contained in the actuarial vajuation although the actuary has emphasisad the level of
uncettainty in the earthquake claims cost estimates. The actuary was satisfied as to the nature, sufficiency and accuracy of the data
used to determine the outstanding claims liability. The valuation was reviewed by Christian Barrington (Fellow of the New Zealand
Sociaty of Actuaries) of IAG New Zealand Limited. The methodology used was peer reviewed by Ernst & Young.

Uncertainties surrounding the outstanding claims liability estimation process include those refating to the data, actuarial models and
assumptions, the statistical uncertainty associated with a general insurance claims runoff process, and risks external to the
Consolidated entity, for example, the continued number of claims going over-cap from the EQC, the impact of future legislative reform
and legal judgements arising out of the Canterbury earthquake events. Uncertainty from these sources is examined for each class of
business and expressed as a volatility measure relative to the net central estimate. The volatility measure for each class is derived
after consideration of stochastic modelling and benchmarking to industry analysis. Certain product classes may be subject to the
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emergence of new types of latent claims and such unicertainties are considered when setting the volatility, and hence the risk margin
appropriate for those classes.

The measure of the vofatility is referrad to as the coefficients of variation (CoV). The CoV is defined as the standard deviation of the
distribution of future cash flows divided by the mean.

Volatility levels are related to the general fevels of uncertainty of various classes of business.

The risk margin required to provide a given probability of adequacy for two or more classes af business or for two or more geographic
lacations combined is likely to be less than the sum of the risk margins for the individual classes. This refiects the benefit of
diversification in general insurance.

The measure of the diversification benefit is referred to as correlation. The higher the correlation betwaen two classes of business, the
more likely it is that a negative outcome in one class will correspond to a negative outcome in the other class. The correjations
adopted are normally detived from industry analysis, historical experience and the judgement of expertenced and qualified actuaries.

The determination of the overall risk margin takes into account the volatility of each class of business and the cotrelations between
the lines of business. The current risk margin, which has been determined after assessing the inherent uncertainty in the central
estimate and the prevailing market environment, results in an overall probability of adequacy for the outstanding claims liabitity of
87.5%. For determining the gross risk margin for the Canterbury earthquake events the risks of further deterioration in claim costs,
the continued number of claims golng over-cap from the EQC and the impact of apportionment has been considered across the 4
September 2010, 22 February 2011 and 13 June 2011 earthquakes. The net risk margin has taken into consideration the impact of
the adverse development cover, Wesfarmer's Indemnity and latent claims for the Company.

For determining the gross risk margin for the 14 November 2016 Kalkoura earthquake event the potential for an increase in costs due
to claims daterioration, new over caps and model uncertainty has been considered. The net risk margin has taken Into consideration
the reinsurance coverage available on this event.

IV, Actuarial assumptions

The following ranges of key actuarial assumptions were used in the measurement of outstanding claims and recoveries, where
appropriate, at the reporting date. Specific monetary reserves have been allocated to the eatthguake evenis for inflation and claims
handiing.

ASSUMPTION
CANTERBURY KAIKOURA EXCLUDING
EARTHQUAKE EARTHQUAKE EARTHQUAKE
CLAIMS CLAIMS CLAIMS
2020
Discountad average term to settlement 1.23 years 0.7 years 1.0 years
{nflation rate 0,93% 0.93% 0.93%
Discount rate 0.00%-1.42% 0.00%-1.42% 0.00%-1.42%
Claims handling costs ratio n/a n/a 5.10%
2019
Discounted average term to settlement 1.16 years 0.0 years 1.1 yeats
Infiation rate 2.18% 2.18% 2.18%
Discount rate 1.50%-2.23% 1.50%-2.23% 1.50%-2.23%
Claims handling costs ratio n/a n/a 5.10%

PROCESS USED TQ DETERMINE ASSUMPTIONS
A description of the key assumptions and the processes used to determine those assumptions is provided helow.

i. Discounted average term to settlement

The discounted average term to settlement relates to the expected payment pattern for claims (inflated and discounted). ftis
calculated by class of business and is generally based on historical settlement patterns. The discounted average term to settiement,
while not itself an assumption, provides a summary indication of the future cash flow pattern.

ii. Inflation raie
insurance costs are subject to inflationary pressures. Economic inflation assumptions are set by reference to current economic

indicators,

iii. Discountrate
The discount rate is derived from market vields on government securities.

iv. Claims handling costs ratio

The future claims handling costs ratio is generally caleulated with reference 1o the historical experience of claims handling costs as a
percentage of past payments. Claims handling costs In relation to Canterbury and Kaikoura earthquake evenis have been estimated
separately, taking into account the best information available at the reporting date.
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V. The effect of changes in assumptions

a. GENERAL IMPACT OF CHANGES

i. Discounted average term to settlement

A decrease in the discounted average term to settlement would reffect claims being paid sconer than anticipated and so would
increase the claims expense. Note that this sensitivity test only extends or shortens the term of the payments assumed in the
valuation, without changing the total nominal amount of the payments.

ii. Inflation rates
Expected future payments are inflated to take account of inflationary increases. An increase or decrease in the assumed levels of
economic inflation will have a carrespending dacrease or increase on profit and loss.

ifi. Discount rate

The outstanding claims liability is calculated with reference to expected future payments. These payments are discounted to agjust for
the time value of money. An increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate will have a corresponding increase or decrease on
profit and loss.

iv. Glaims handling costs ratio
An increase in the ratic reflects an increase in the estimate for the internal costs of administering claims. An increase or decrease in
the ratio assumption will have a corresponding decrease of increase on profit and loss.

b. SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS OF CHANGES

The impact on the profit and loss before income tax to changes in key actuarial assumptlons is summarised below. Each change has
been calculated in isolation of the other changes and is statad nat of reinsurance recoveries. The movements ate stated in absolute
terms whete the base assumption is a percentage, for example, if the base inflation rate assumption was 3.5%, a 1% increase would
mean assuming a 4.5% inflation rate.

The impact on comprehensive income is disclosed for each of the key assumptions:

PARENT AND
ASSUMPTION CONSOLIDATED
CANTERBURY KAIKOURA EXCLUDING
MOVEMENT IN EARTHQUAKE EARTHQUAKE EARTHQUAKE
ASSUMPTION CLAIMS CLAIMS CLAIMS
$000 $000 $000
2020
Discounted average term to settlement +1 Month {25) - (435)
-1 Month 25 - 436
Inflation rate +1% 204 - 4,287
1% {200) - {4,101)
Discount rate +1% {200} - (4,101)
1% 204 - 4,287
Claims handling costs ratio +1% n/a - 7,189
1% n/a - (7,189}
2019 ‘
Biscounted average term to settlement +1 Month 0 - (433)
-1 Month 0 - 433
Inftation rate +1% 142 - 4,130
-1% {117} - (3.940)
Discount rate +1% (117} - (3,940}
-1% 142 - 4,130
Claims handling costs ratio +1% n/a - 6,206
-1% n/a - {6,206)
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NOTE 9. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES ON OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019
$000 $000

A. REINSURANCE AND OTHER RECOVERIES ON OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
Expected reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims - undiscounted 686,258 654,150
Discount to present value (1,710) {7,169}
Expected reinsurance and other recoveties on outstanding claims - discounted -..584,648 646981

The carrying value of reinsurance recoveries and other recoveries includes $2041.2 mitlion (2019 - $4486.2 million) which is expected to
be settfoed mare than 12 months from the reporting date.

The reinsurance recoveries on outstanding claims includes $291.2 million (2019 - $287.6 million) from IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited.

Wesfarmers Limited has provided an indemnity in favour of the Company in respect of escalation of the ultimate earthquake claims
costs arising from the February 2011 event, This indemnity is only in relation to historical Lumley earthquake claims. The Canterbury
earthquake reserves are subject 16 a number of uncertainties explained in Note 8. The indemnity immunises the Company against any
subsequent adverse development of Lumtey's 22 February 2011 Canterbury earthquake claims costs.

B. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The measurement of reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates.
The amounts are generally calculated using actuarial assumptions and methods similar to those used for the outstanding claims
liability {refer to section IV of the claims note).

Where possible, the valuation of reinsurance recoveries is linked directly to the valuation of the gross outstanding claims liability.
Accordingly, the valtation of outstanding reinsurance recoveries is subject to similar risks and uncertainties as the valuation of the
outstanding claims liability. Significant individual losses {for example those relating to catastrophe events) are analysed on a case by
case basis for reinsurance purposes.

C. THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS
The effect of changes in assumptions on the net outstanding claims liability, which incorporates the reinsurance recoveries on
outstanding claims and other recoveries receivable, is disclosed in the claims note.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a dedicated risk management function responsible for the development and maintenance of the risk
management framework. The framework includes a written Reinsurance Management Strategy (REMS) which sets out key elements
of the reinsurance management framework, processes for setting and monitoring the Maximum Event Retention (MER), processes for
selecting, implementing, monitoring and reviewing reinsurance arrangements and identification, roles and responsibilities of those
charged with managerial responsibility for the reinsurance management framework. The REMS is updated annually and approved by
the IAG Board.

E. REINSURANCE PROGRAMME

Risks underwritten are reinsured in order to imit exposure to losses, stabilise earnings, protect capital resources and ensure efficient
control and spread of the risks underwritten. The Company has its own reinsurance programme and determines its own risk limits. To
facilitate the reinsurance process, manage countesparty exposure and create economies of scale, the IAG Group has established a
captive reinsurance operation. This operation acts as the reinsurer for the Group by being the main buyer of the Group's outwards
reinsUrance pragramme. The reinsurance operation is intended to manage reinsurance and earnings volatility and the IAG Group's
exposure to catastrophe risk. The operation retains a portion of the intercompany business it assumes and retrocedes {passes on) the
remainder to external reinsurers.

White a large portion of the business ceded by the Company is reinsured with the Group's captive reinsurance aperation, the Company
purchases additional reinsurance protection cutside the Group, This generally relates to facultative reinsurance covers and queta
share agreetnents.

The reinsurance operation purchases reinsurance on behalf of the Campany to cover a maximum return period of the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand's (RBN7) requirament af 1:1000 year event. Dynamic financial analysis modelling is used to determine the optimal fevel
to which reinsurance should be purchased for capital efficiency, compared with the cost and benefits of covers available in the market.

The reinstrance programmes consist of a combination of the following reinsurance protection:




A Group Catastrophe caver which is placad in line with the strategy of buying to at least the fevel of a 1:1000 year
event on a maodified whale of portfolio basis. Covers purchased are dynamic, the maximum event retention (MER)
changes as total requirements change and as the reinsurance purchase strategy evolves,

A Surplus cover, which provides "per risk” protection for the commercial property and engineeting businesses.

Excess of loss reinsurance for casualty, marine, motor and property portfolios.

The Company has entered into a whole of account 20% guota share agreement effective 1 July 2015 with Berkshire
Hathaway. The Company cedes 20% of Gross Written Premium and recovers 20% of ali claims. The Company is also
reimbursed for 20% of its share of operating costs and receives a percentage based fee of the premium ceded,

From 1 January 2018 the Company entered into further quota share arrangements with Munich Re, Swiss Re and
Hannover Re, The Company cedes 12.5% of Gross Written Premium and recovers 12.5% of all claims. The Company is
also refmbursed for 12.5% of its share of operating costs and receives a percentage based fee of the premium ceded.

The Company has also purchased adverse devetopment cover (ADC) which provides $800 million of additional
protecticn against the Canterbury Earthquakes effective 1 January 2018.

B The Company has a high hazard property "per risk" guota share. The Company cedes 66.67% of this portfofio gross of

any quota share arrangements.

B The Company has a cyber liability quota share. The Company cedes 75% of this portfolio gross of any quota share
arrangements,

NOTE 10. DEFERRED INSURANCE ASSETS

PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019
$000 $000
A. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
Reconciliation of movements
Deferred acquisition costs at the beginning of the financial year 207,819 207,176
Acquisition costs deferred 224,920 207,819
Amortisation charged to profit {207,819) {207,176)
Deferred acquisition costs at the end of the financial vear —224,920 207,819
B. DEFERRED OUTWARDS REINSURANGE EXPENSE
Reconciliation of movements
Deferred outwards reinsurance expense at the beginning of the financial year 720,015 879,702
Reinsurance aexpenses deferred 735,232 720,015
Amortisation charged to profit {720,015) (679,702)
Deferred cutwards reinsurance expense at the end of the financial year —735232 _ 720,045
NOTE 11. UNEARNED PREMIUM LIABILITY
PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019
$000 $000
A. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Unearned premium liability at the beginning of the financial year 1,301,908 1,242,144
Beferral of pramiums on contracts written 1,324,097 1,301,208
Earning of premiums written in previous financial years {1,301,906) _(1242144)
Unearned premium liability at the end of the financlal year 4,824,097 1,301,906

B. LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

The liability adequacy test has been conducted using the central estimate of the premium liabilities, together with an appropriate

margin far uncertainty. The test is based on prospective information and so is heavily dependent on assumpticns and

judgements.

The liability adequacy test at reporting date resulied in a surplus for the Company for which additional information is provided in the

table below {2019 - surplus).

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

$000 $000

Net central estimate of preseni value of expected future cash flows from future claims 504,618 484,931
Risk margin of the present value of expected future cash flows 14,857 13,154
519,475 498,085

Risk margin percentage 2.9% 2.7%
Probability of adequacy 60.0% 60.0%
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The probability of adequacy applied for the purposes of the lability adequacy test differs from the probability of adeguacy determined
for the outstanding claims liability. The reason for this difference is that the former is in effect an impairment test used only to test the
sufficiency of net premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measurement accounting policy used in determining the carrying value of
the outstanding claims liability carfied on the balance sheet,

NOTE 12. INVESTMENTS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
A, COMPOSITION
I. Interest bearing investments
Cash and short term money held in investment 8,231 5,302 8,231 5,302
Government and semi-government bonds 166,940 69,170 166,940 69,170
Corporate honds and notes 998,640 902,312 998,640 902,312

1,173,841 976,784 4,173,811 976,784

Il. Equity investiments

Listed - - 1,498 2,147
Unlisted 220,640 392,761 220,640 392,761

220,640 392,761 222,138 394,908
1,394,451 1,369,545 1,395948 1371692

B. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
The table below separates the total investments balance based on & higrarchy that reflects the significance of tha inputs used in the
determination of fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following [evels:

I. Level 1 quoted prices
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are used.

1l. Level 2 other observable inputs

Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but
are observable for the asset or liability, for example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals.

INl. Level 3 unobservable inputs
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs) are used.

Where the determination of fair value for an instrument involves inputs from more than one categoty, the level within which the
instrument is categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is sighificant to the fair value
measuremeant in its entirety.

CONSOLIDATED
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000

2020
Interest bearing investments 123,648 4,050,163 - 1,173,811
Equity investments 1,498 220,640 - 222138
125146 1,270,803 - 1,395,949

2019
Interest bearing investments 40,776 936,008 - 976,784
Equity investments 2147 392,761 - 394,908
42,923 1,328,769 - 1,371,692

The Company has same investments as the Consolidated entity with the exception of Equity Investments of $1.5 million (2019 - $2.1
rillion}.
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NOTE 13. RECEIVABLES

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
COMPOSITION
. Premium receivable
Gross premium receivable 884,666 865,597 884,666 865,597
Provision for lapses {6,883} {3,664) {5,883) (3,664)
Premium receivable 877,783 861,933 877,783 861,933
Il Trade and other raceivahbles
Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims 34,424 43,813 34,424 43,813
Investment income receivable 3,850 5,733 3,850 5,733
Investment transactions not yat settled at raporting date - 69 - 69
Other debtors 12,945 11,846 12,945 11,846
Trade and other receivables 51,219 61,481 51,219 61,461
929.002 923,394 929,002 923,394

Reinsurance recoveries on paid claims includes $27.2 million {2019 - $20.0 million) recoverable from IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited.

Under the guota share agreement with National Indemnity Company, Munich Re, Swiss Re and Hannover Re, the Company has a right
of offset, and settles on a net basis. At 30 June 2020, the Company has offset receivables due under the contracts of $200.1 million

{2019 - $209.4 million) with the reinsurance premium payable of $446.1 million (2019 - $440.7 mitlion). The net payable Is included
within the reinsurance premium payable balance. The relevant cash flows pertaining to the contracts have been presented on a gross

hasis withir: the cash flow statement.

NOTE 14. LEASES

A. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

L Right-of-use asseis
PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
MOTOR
PROPERTIES VEHICLES  EQUIPMENT Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
2020
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 110,026 1,917 826 112,769
Additions to right-of-use assets 7,367 1,736 - 9,103
Depreciation charge for the year {19,707) (1,452) (268) {21,427)
impairment of right-of-use-asset (11,338} - - (11,338)
Derecognition of right-of-use assets (745) - - {(745)
Balance at the end of the financial year 85,603 2204 ___ 558 88,362
Il. Lease liabllitles
2020
$000
Current 17,872
Non-gutrent 82,134
Carrying value of lease liabilities =e00.0086
Due within 1 year 20,429
Due within 1 to 2 years 18,036
Due within 2 to 5 years 40,154
Due after b years 33,557

Total undiscounted lease lizhilities

B. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

— 12,176

2020
$000
Depreciation (included in underwriting expense) 21,427
tmpairment {included in underwriting expense) 11,338
fnterest expense {included in finance costs) 2,956

The impairment expense pertains to the intended closure of the AMI and State retail stores.
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C. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2020
$000
Total cash outflow for leases 22,747
NOTE 15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
Software
development
$000
2020
A. COMPOSITION
Cost 189,761
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {176,591}
Balance at the end of the financiaf year ———-—J-——__.....m
B. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 15,849
Additions acquired and developed -
Amortisation® {2,679
Balance at the end of the financial year . __ 13170
PARENT AND
CONSOLIDATED
Total
$000
2019
€. COMPOSITION
Cost 189,761
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (173,912)
Balance at the end of the financial year 0,849
D. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 30,065
Additions acquired and developed 9,080
Amortisation* . (23,276)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,849
* Amortisation Is included under other underwriting expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. -
E. AMORTISATION RATE (% per annum) 10.00%-33.33%
F. EXPLANATORY NOTES FOR INTANGIBLE ASSETS
I. Software development expenditure
The software development expenditure asset comprises internally generated assets.
G. IMPAIRMENT TESTING
An impairment test was conducted for software under development, For software deployed, an impairment rigger review was
conducted.
NOTE 16. GOODWILL
PARENT - CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000

A. COMPOSITION
Goodwill 206,813 208,813 207,473 207,473
Accumulated impairment charges - - . -

Balance at the end of the financial year __=206813 __ 206.813 207,473 ____207A73
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The goodwill reported by the Company substantially arises from the purchase of New Zealand Insurance Limited (NZI) in 2003.

B. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The impairment testing of goodwill involves the use of accounting estimates and assumptions. The recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit is determined on the basis of value in use calculations, The value in use is calculated using a discounted cash flow
methodology covering a ten year period with an appropriate terminal value at the end of year ten for each cash generating unit. The
catrying value of identified intangible assets is deducted from the value generated from the cash flow projections to arrive at a
recoverable value for goodwill which is then compared with the carrying value of goodwill.

There was no impairment charge recognised during the current or prior yeatr,

Assumptions used

The following describes the key assumptions on which management has based its ¢ash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill. There is no reasonably possibie change in key assumptions that could cause the carrying value of goocdwill to
exceed the recoverable amount,

a. CASH FLOW FORECASTS
Cash flow forecasts are hased on ten year business plans.

b. TERMINAL VALUE

Terminal value is calculated using a perpetuity growth formula based on the cash flow forecast for year ten, terminal growth rate in
profit or premium and, where appropriate, terminal insurance margin., Terminal growth rates and insurance matrgins are based on past
performance and management's expectations for future performance in each segment. The terminal growth rate assumptions used in
the impairment assessment as at 30 June 2020 was 3.70% {2019 - 3.75%).

¢. DISCOUNT RATE

Discount rates reflect a beta and equity risk premium appropriate to the Consolidated entity, risk adjusted where applicable. The post-
tax discount rate used was $.6% (2019 - 10.1%).

NOTE 17. DPETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OWNERSHIP INTEREST DATE
2020 2019
% %
State Ihsurance Limited Non-operating 100.00 100.00 30 June
Direct Insurance Services Limited Non-operating 100.00 100.00 30 June
IAG (NZ) Share Plan Nominee Limited Trustee of Staff Share Plan 100.00 100.00 30 June
The IAG New Zealand Limited Employee Share Plan Share Plan Trust 100.00 100.00 30 June
NZI Staff Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited Investment Nominee 100.00 100.00 30 June
NOTE 18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
COMPOSITION
L. Trade creditors
Commissions payable 28,618 28,391 26,618 28,391,
Levies pavable 100,872 89,803 100,872 89,203
Other 75,122 76,282 75422 76,282

202,612 194,576 202,642 194,576
il. Other payahles
Other creditors and accruals 44,297 3b,525 45,835 37,113
Investment creditors 9 - 9 -
246,918 230,101 248,456 231,689

Trade and other payables are unsecured and non interest-bearing. Amounts have not been discounted because the effect of the time
value of money is not material. The carrying amount of payables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of the liabilities
hecause of the short-term nature of the liabilities.
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000

A. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROVISION
Annual {eave 20,485 15,295 20,485 15,295
Cash based incentive arrangements 13,660 24,586 13,660 24,586
Defined henefit superannuation plans 5,442 4,463 5,442 4,463
Defined benefit pension arrangement - unfunded 1,210 1,281 1,210 1,281
40,797 45,625 40,797 45,625

The employee henefits provision includes $6.7 million (2019 - $5.7 million) which is expected to be settied after more than 12 months
from reporting date.

B. CASH BASED INCENTIVE ARRANGEMENTS

Short term incentive plan

The short term incentive plan continued in operation during the current reporting year, Eligible employees have the capacity to earm a
proportion of thair base pay as a cash incentive annually. The inceative opportunity is set depending on an employee's role and
responsibilities. The majority of employees are eligible for a 10% or 20% cash incentive. The incentive payments are deterrined
based on an assessment of individual performance and achievement of a range of business unit and individual goals.

NOTE 20. SHARE BASED REMUNERATION

The provision of share based remuneration creates a link between shareholder value creation and rewarding employees, Share hased
remuneration encourages employee share ownership, links employee reward to the performance of the Consolidated entity and assists
with retention of key personnel. This type of remuneration encourages employees to focus oh creating shareholder value over the
longet term.

The obligations under share based payment arrangements are covered by the on market purchase of IAG ordinary shares which are
held in trust. The shares are purchased on or near grant date at the prevailing marke( price. The arrangements are managed using in-
house trusts. The trusts are administered by an external company.

The number of shares purchased to cover each allocation of shares or rights is determined by the trustee based on independent
actuarial advice. The trusts allow for excess shares purchased in relation to one plan to be usad to meet obligations of the other plans
at the trusiee’s discretion.

Share based remuneration is provided through a range of different plans each of which has different purposes and different rules.

A. SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTIVE SHARE PLANS
The senior management and executive share plan arrangements consist of two separate arrangements working together. These two
arrangements are the Deferred Award Rights Plan and the Executive Perfarmance Rights Plan which are detailed below.

. Deferred Award Rights Plan
The Deferred Awards Rights Plan {DAR Plan) is the deferred portion of the short term incentive issued as rights over I1AG ordinary
shares.

Key terms and conditions:

m  The rights are granted for nil consideration, are non-transferable, and can be settled only with axisting 1AG ordinary shares.
Holders do not receive dividends and do not have voting rights until the rights are exsrcised.

B The vesting condition is not market related and requires the patticipant to continue in relevant employment.

k& Where the rights vest (the holder becomes entitled to exercise the right), the plan entitles participating employees to acquire one
IAG ordinary share for each right. The exercise price of all vested rights i5 a nominal vaiue of $1 per tranche of rights exereised.

m  The rights vest after a maximum two year period as determined by the IAG Group Board subject to the participants continuing in
relevant emaloyment for the full period. [fthere is a change of control of JAG, the IAG Group Board has discretion to determine if
and when rights should vest.

w  Ifthe vesting condition is not met, then the rights lapse. The rights also lapse where the holder chooses to forgo the rights, and
all rights expire seven years from grant date where they have not previously lapsed or been exercised.

li. Executive Performance Rights Plan
The Executive Performance Rights Plan (EPR Plan) is the Group's long term incentive plan issued as rights over IAG ordinary shares.

Kay terms and conditions:

E  The rights are granted for nil consideration, are non transferable. The rights may be settled in cash or IAG ordinary shares, su hject
to IAG Group Board discretion. Holders do not receive dividends and do not have voting rights untii the tights are exercised.

B Where the rights vest (the hoider becomes entitled to exercise the right), the EPR Plan entitles participating employees ¢ acquire
either one IAG ordinary share or its equivatent cash value as determined by the 1AG Group Board for each right. There is no
exercise price,

B Fach allocation is split equally into two portions and is subject to different performance hurdles. The first vesting condition is not
market related and requires the participant to continue relevant employment. The second set of vesting conditions is as follows:




—  50% is subject to a return on equity hurdie (ROE allocation); and
— bB0% is subject to a total shareholder return hurdle (TSR allocation).

If a participant ceases employment with 1AG befors the performance conditions are tested, their unvested rights will generally lapse.

B Under the TSR allocation, [AG's TSR is assessed against the TSR of a peer group of entities. For allocations made prior to 30 June
2009, the peer group cansists of entities in the S&P/ASX 100 Index and for allacations made after 30 June 2009, the peer group
consists of entities in the top B0 industrials within the S&P/ASX 100 index. The performance hurdle is set with a tiered vesting
scale:

- Maximum vesting of 100% If IAG's relative TSR is equal or larger than the 75th percentile of tha peer group:
- Minimum vesting of 0% if IAG's TSR is below the 50th percentile of the peer group.,

B The ROE hurdle compares IAG's performance with [AG's welghted average cost of capital (WACC), where the |1AG Group Board
determines the WACC. The tiered vesting scate is:
—  Maximum vesting of 100% if ROE is larger than 1.9 x WACC (1.6 x WACC for rights granted between 1. July 2010 to 30 June
2019, 1.8 x WACC for rights granted hetween 1 July 2008 ta 30 June 2010},
- Minimum vesting at 0% if ROE is below 1.4 x WACC (1.2 x WACC for rights granted between 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2018, 1.5
X WACC for rights granted between 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2010, 1.3 x WACC for rights granted before 30 June 2008},

s [fthere is a change of control of 1AG, the IAG Group Beard has discretion to determine if and when rights should vest.

B. EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS

The Company has established an employee share pian o assist employees to becoma shareholders of IAG. The Plan operates within
the terms of a Trust Deed dated 24 July 2002. Shares subscribed under the Plan are held in Trust for a vesting period of three years
on behalf of the respective staff member. Under certain circumstances such as retirement, death or permanent disability, the vesting
period may be waived. Dividends are payable during the vesting period. Staff who leave the Group before completion of the vesting
period forfeit any rights to the shares. Such forfeited shares may then be reallocated as part of a future approved offer or disposed of
at the discretion of the Trustees. Dividends received on fotfeited shares may, at the Trustees’ discretion, be used to defray the costs of
administering the Plan. Shares held in the Trust have full voting rights and these rights may be exercised by the staff member on
whose behalf the shares are held.

2040 to 2020 IAG NZ Employee Share Awards:

In terms of each of these awards staff can subscribe for a $1,000 parcel of shares. Shares are purchased by way of salary sacrifice
and IAG NZ contributes 10% towards the cost of the share purchase. IAG shares taken up through the Plan do not incur any
brokerage. Participation in the awards is optional.

The Trustee of the Plan is |AG Share Plan Nominee {Ply) Limited. The Company has the power to appoint and remove the Trustees at
its discretion.

At batance date the Trust held the following Ordinary Shares in I1AG:

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

Forfeited shares : 28,002 37,261
Shares held on behalf of eligible staff 215173 213,337
Total shares held _ 243,175 _ 250,588

The total number of shares held reprasents 0.01:1% {June 2018 - 0.0113%) of the Ordinary Shares issued by IAG.
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NOTE 21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

At the end of the reporting period the Company had the following related party balances:

Closing Balance

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Related Party Description $000 $000
IAG Re Singapore Fee for Services {7386) (736)
[AG No. 1 Limited Fee for Services 537 -
tAG No, 2 Limited Fee for Services 537 -
insurance Australia Limited Forward exchange contracts (3,258) 13,037
Insurance Austraiia Limited Fee for services {10,200} (4,093)
IAG Asset Management Limited investment management fees (244) (202
Direct Insurance Services Limited Current account with subsidiary company 12 i2

(18,352) 8,018

The Consolidated entity had the same related party balances with the exception of Direct Insurance Services, eliminated on
consolidation.
Reported within Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims (refer to note 9):
{AG Re Singapore Pte Limited 294,200 287,553
IAG Re Labuan {L) Berhad - 1
Reported within Recelvables (refer to note 13):
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited 27,222 20,047
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad {43} 32
Reported within Reinsurance premium payable:
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited 232,954 338,015
Insurance Australia Limited 44,153 18
Reported withln Outstanding claims liability {refer {0 note 8)
JAG No.1 Limited 26 -

B. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

impact of transactions with related parties on the Company's Financial Statements was as follows:

Transaction Amount

30 June 2020 30 june 2019
Related Party Transaction $000 $000
IAG Finance (NZ) Limited NZ Branch Fee for setvices 37 63
Insurance Australia Limited Forward exchange contracts 31,023 {46,703)
Insurance Australia Limited Reinsurance recoveries {802) {263)
Insurance Australia Limited Reinsurance expense 14,507 1,640
NRMA Information Services Pty Limited Tachnology costs recharged - 134
insurance Australia Limited Fee for services 70,453 66,617
IAG Asset Management Limited Investment management fees 2,653 2,465
First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Claims expenditure 9,988 10,174
First Rescue and Emergency (NZ) Limited Fee for services 231 1,080
Loyalty New Zealand Limited lasue of Fly Buys peints 5,713 5,403
IAG {NZ) Holdings Limited* Dividend pald 26,900 64,500
IAG No. 1 Limited Costs on-charged {637) {325)
1AG {NZ) Holdings Limited* Repurchase of ordinary shares 220,000 320,000
1AG No. 2 Limited Costs on-charged (537) {325)
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance expense 306,268 208,615
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance recoveries {130,313) {24,128)
IAG Re Labuan (L) Berhad Reinsurance recoveries 1 1,107
IAG No. 1 Limited Claims paid 2,705 -
IAG Re Singapore Pte Limited Reinsurance commission revenue {24,736) {30,699)
Insurance Australia Limited Reinsurance commission revenue {330) {226}

The Consolidated entity had the same related party transaciions.
The above related party transactions highlighted as * were with the parent entity and the rest of the related party transactions were
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with the respective associated companies.

The foreign exchange movement on investments and the foreign exchange movement on the related currency hedges have been offset
within investment income in Note 4.B.

€. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Details of compensation

Key management personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Consolidated entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

The aggregate compensation of the KMP is set out below:

PARENT AND

CONSOLIDATED

2020 2019

5000 $000

Short term employee banefits 4,104 5,832
Post employment benefits 4 5
Other long term benefits i {7}
Share based payments 1,689 1,723
5,798 7@

The compensation disclosed in the table above represents the KMP's estimated compensation received from the I1AG Group in relation
to their involvement in the activities with the Consolidated entity.

NOTE 22. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A. CAPITAL
AL 30 June 2020, Share Capital comprised 2,358,433,488 ordinary shares of $1 each (2019 -2,578,433,488)

On 16 August 2019, the Company bought back and cancelled 50 million ordinary shares of $1 each that were issued to |AG {NZ)
Holdings Limited.

On 5 Decamber 2019, the Company hought back and cancelled 120 million ordinary shares of $1 each that were issued to 1AG {NZ}
Holdings Limited.

On 10 February 2020, the Company bought back and cancelled 50 million ordinary shares of $1 each that were issued to IAG (NZ)
Holdings Limited.

During the year the Company paid dividends totalling $26.9 million which represented 1 cent per share.

All ordinary shares patticipate equally in both dividends and any surplus remaining on winding up the Company. Al ordinary shares are
fully paid and have the right to one vote.

B. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF EQUITY RESERVE
The equity reserve is used to recognise the fair value at grant date of equity settled share based remuneration providad to employees
over the vesting period.

To satisfy the obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on market at or near grant
date of the relevant arrangement and heid in trust. The purchase consideration of the shares purchased s amortised to the equity
reserve over the vesling period.

C. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF GENERAL RESERVE

The general reserve is used 1o recoghise the difference between the consideration paid for the insurance operations of AMI| and
Lumiey and the value of the net assets transfarred on sale.

NOTE 23. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

PARENT CONSOLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000

A, COMPOSITION
Cash held for aperational purposes 118,233 71,847 118,237 71,851
Cash and short term money held in investments 8,231 5,302 8,231 5,302
Cash and cash equivalents 126,464 77,149 126.468 77,153

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand and held with banks, deposits at call and short term money held in investment
readily convertible to cash within two working days, net of any bank overdraft.

The carrying amaunt of the cash and cash equivalents presented on tha balance sheets is the same as that used for the purposes of
the cash flow statements as there are no bank overdrafts used which are repayable upon demand.
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B. SIGNIFICANT RISKS
The net cafrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum expostire to credit visk at reporting date and is

aquivalent to the fair value of the assets because of the negligible credii risk and frequent repricing.

The majority of the amounts bear variable rates of interest. Those balances bearing a fixed rate of interest mature in less than one
year. A small portion of the amounts bear no interest.

PARENT CONSQLIDATED
2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 $000 $000 $000
C. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT/{LOSS) FOR THE YEAR TO NET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 185,863 294,740 165,407 294,513
I. Non-cash items
Depreciation of plant and equipment and right of use assets 32,825 13,249 32,825 13,249
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,679 23,275 2,679 23,275
Met realised {gains) and losses on disposal of investments 2,389 (10,6:13) 2,389 (10,613)
Met unrealised (gains) and losses on revaluation of Iinvestments 29,162 (22,401) 29,717 (22,174)
Net (gains) and losses on disposal of plant and equipment 168 - 168 -
Impairment of plant and equipment and right of use assets 20,356 - 20,358 -
Other (797) (1,366) {896) (1,366}
Il. Movement in operating assets and liabilities
DECRFASE/(INCREASE) IN OPERATING ASSETS
Premium and other receivables {15,066) {17,616} {15,088) (17,618)
Prepayments, deferred levies and charges {34,030) {39,856} {34,030) (39,8586)
Deferred tax assets . 80,837 111,452 80,837 111,452
Reihsurance and other recoveries (28,179) 266,145 (28,1.79) 266,145
Current tax asset 9 9 9 9
INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN OPERATING LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables {11,0587) 105,565 {11,057) 105,565
Provisions {4,828) 7,031 (4,828) 7,031
Outstanding claims Bability 103,120 (245,696) 103,120 (245,698)
Unearned premium liability 221491 59,762 22191 59,762

Net cash flows from operating activities _ 365642 _ 543,880 __ 3856842 _ 543,680

NOTE 24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The capital management strategy plays a central role in managing risk to create shareholder value whilst meeting the important
objective of providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders and lendars and satisfy regulators and stakeholders.

The target level of capitalisation is assessed by considering a number of factors, including;:

B proteciing the interests of current and future policyholders;
m the probability of falling below the prescribed regulatory capital amount;
B other stakeholder perspectives, including rating agency capital models and associated ratings.

internal policies, governance structures and regutar reporting of capital are in piace to ensure deviations from target capitalisation will
result in senior management and the Board considering how any shortfall should be made good or any surplus utilised.
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Regulatory capital
IAG NZ is regulated by the RBNZ in terms of the Insurance {Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act).

The Act and associated Solvency Standards prescribe how the minimum solvency capital {MSC) required by the regulator and how the
actual solvency capital (ASC) held by the licensed insurer are caloulated. The solvency margin is detarmined hy comparing the ASC
with the MSC, which are required to be reported to RBNZ halfyearly. As at 30 lune 2020, the ASC, MSC, solvency margin and solvency
ratio held was:

2020

$m
ASC 698.1
MSC 349.9
Solvency margin — 3482
Solvency Ratio (percent) 199.5%
2019

$m
ASC 626.2
MSC 383.5
Solvency margin — 2427
Solvency Ratio (percent) 163.3%

The policy or approach to managing capital has not changed during the pariod.

B. CREDIT RATING

In terms of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2040, the Company undergoes an annual claims paying ability rating. The rating
review is performed by Standard and Poor's Pty (Australia) Limited. As at the date of this report, the rating assigned to IAG NZ was
"AR" (2019 - "AAM). The AA- rating represents 'very strong' claims paying ability.

NOTE 25. CONTINGENCIES

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities are not recoghised on the balance sheet but are disclosed here where the possibility of settlement is less than
probable but more than remote. Provisions are not required with respect to these matters as it is not probable that a future sacrifice
of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not reliably measurable. If settlement becomes probable, a provision is
recognised. The best estimate of the settlement amount is used in measuring a contingent liability for disclosure. The measurement
involves judgement.

The New Zealand Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE) has conducted compliance reviews of a number of New
Zealand businesses, including the Company. An interpretive matter has arlsen regarding the definition of ‘discretionary payments' in
the context of the Holidays Act 2003 (the Act). Itis the Company's view that it has, and continues to, correctly apply the Act in this
regard. The Company is aware that MBIE has brought legai proceedings against other New Zealand businesses, but not the Company,
and awaits the outcome of those legal proceedings.

Like many regulated entities the Company has been reviewing its conduct and practices regarding products and pricing offerad to its
customers. The Company will continue its review during the next financial year. There is therefora the potential for customer
remediation or compensation, though no materiai matters requiring remediation or compensation have been identified to date. The
outcomes and total costs associated with these possible exposures remain uncertain.

NOTE 26. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has not arisen in the Intetval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report any item, transaction, or event
of a matertal and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directots of the Company, to affect significantly the operalions of the
Company, the resuilts of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.
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ndependent auditor s repo

To the sharcholder of IAG New Zealand Limited

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
in our epinion, the accempanying financial statements We have audited the accompanying financial

of IAG New Zealand Limited (the “Company”) and its staternents which comprise:

subsidiaries (the "Group”) on pages & 10 44: —- the Company and Group balance sheet as at 30

present fairly in all material respects the June 2020;

Company's and Group's financial position as at 30
June 2020 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year ended on that date; and

— the Company and Group statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended; and

comply with New Zealand Equivalents to

International Financial Reporting Standards and

International Financial Reporting Standards.

— notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
inforrnation.

== Basis for opinion

Wae conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {(New Zeatand} (“ISAs (NZ)"). We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Company and Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Cade of Ethics for Professional Accountants {the “IESBA
Code®), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code.

Our responsibilities under 1SAs {NZ) are further described in the “ Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
Company and Group financial statements” section of our report.

Our firm has also provided other assurance services including a limited assurance engagement in respect of the
Company and Group interim financial statements for the six month period ended 31 December 2019, a limited
assurance engagement in respect of the Company’s Insurer Solvency Return as at 31 December 2019, a reasonable
assurance engagemsnt in respect of the Company’s Annual nsurer Solvency Return as at 30 June 2020, and an
agreed upon procedures engagement and limited assurance engagement in respect of the Company's reporting
requirements to various banking partners in accordance with their respective agency agresments. Subject to certain
restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Company and Group on normal terms within
the ordinary course of trading activities of the Company and Group. These matters have not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Company and Group. The firrm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the
Company and Group.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those rmatters and our key audit procedures to
address those matters in order that the shareholder as a body may better understand the process by which we
arrived at our audit opinion. Our procedures were undertaken in the context of and solely for the purpose of our

© 2020 KPMG, a Mew Zesland partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 45
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Our procedures were undertaken in the context of and solely for the purpose of aur statutory audit opinion on the
financial statements as a whoie and we do not express discrete opinions on separate elements of the financiat
statements.

Key changes in the assessment of audit risks

The COVID-19 pandemic has heightened risks across a number of areas of the business, particularly, in respect of our
assessment of audit fisks, in the valuation of outstanding claims liabilities and associated reinsurance and other
recoveries. Claims expetience is inherently more uncertain in respect of changes in claims incidence and potential
delays in receipt of claims notifications from customers across various business lines. Whilst the key audit matters
the “Valuation of outstanding claims liability” and the “Valuation of reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding
claims”, detailed below, are unchanged from what would have been disclosed without the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, the underlying audit risk has increased, which impacted the extent and nature of audit evidence that we
had to gather, specifically in relation to the key actuarial assumptions and judgements applied.

Valuation of outstanding claims liability {$1,147.9m)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

W adopted a risk based audit approach to determine which
classes of business posed higher claims estimation risks. Factors
that influenced the risk assessment included the tevel of
judgement required, degree of uncertainty regarding the
assumptions adopted, longer delays between claims being

Refer to Note 8 of the financial statements.

The valuation of gross outstanding claims
liahility is a key audit matter because:

— judgement is required by the Group to

consider the central estimate of the gross
outstanding claims liability. This is a
significant estimate as the eventual
ouicomes of incurred but unsettled claims
at the balance sheet date are inherently
uncertain;

there is limited information available and
greater level of uncertainty inherent in
assessing estimation of claims that have
been incurred by the balance sheeot date
but have not yet been reported to the
Group;

claims estimation uses an actuarial
modelling process which involves complex
and subjective actuarial methodologies,
iudgements and assumptions about future
events and developments, both within and
external to the Group, and for which small
changes can have significant implications
to the quantification of gross outstanding
claims liabilities;

judgement is required when considering
the application of historical experience of
claims development to determine current
estimates. For example, specific to the
current environment where the COVID-19
pandemic has caused significant
interruption across New Zealand, claims
activity through the period may not be
representative of future claims activity and
judgement is required when considering
the use of recent experience to determine
current estimates;

when considering the application of
historical experience of claims
development to determine current
estimates, there is greater variability

incurred, reported and expected settlement, greater relative
magnitude in size, and significant variations over prior estimates.

For higher risk areas identified, such as the Canterbury and
Kaikoura earthquakes, we:

— compared the Group's actuarial methodologies with the
methodologies applied in prior periads;,

— ovaluated the Group's governance processes, including
inspecting the Reserving Committee and Event Reserve
Working Party ("ERWP*) charters;

— inspected meeting agendas and minutes of mestings of
both the Reserving Committee and ERWP in relation to the
30 June 2020 reporting date;

— evaluated the actuarial methodologies and the assumgtions
applied in the previous reporting period by comparing the
actual claims development to the prior year claims liability
estimate. We used the information to assess the
adjustments made to the current year's actuarial
methodologies and assumptions applied in the estimation;

— challenged key actuarial assumptions, including loss ratios,
claim frequency and average size of claims, expected impact
of judicial rulings, and allowance for future claims inflation;
and

— considered judgements required to estimate the period in
which claims wifl be settled by analysing historicat payment
patterns and assessing any significant changes.

For claims liabilities arising from the Canterbury earthquakes, we
applied our own methodologies to establish a range of
acceptable gross ultimate costs across the three major

events. We used this range to examine the Group's estimate in
the context of acceptable results and 1o challenge any significant
differences.

We were assisted by KPMG actuarial specialists in interpreting

and evaluating the Group's actuarial modelling processes and
methodology for determining the level of provisions for gross
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Valuation of outstanding claims liability {$1,147.9m) (continued)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

hetween the original estimation and the
ultimate settlement of claims where there
is a long time delay between the claim

being incurred and the ultimate settlement.

For example, specific to the Canterbury
earthquakes of 2010 and 2011, the
estimation of these claims has a greater
degree of uncertainty than non-earthquake
claims, including the continued number of
claims baing reported to the Group by the
Earthquake Commission ("EQC"} for the
first time (going over-cap) and the ukimate
contribution to the cost of these events by
the EQC in terms of its statutory liability
under the provisions of the Earthquake
Commission Act 1993;

— judgement is required fo assess the
estimation of the periods the claims are
expected to be settled in;

— the estimation of claims at the 30 June
2020 reporting date relies on the quality of
the underlying data, including claim
payments and individual estimates of
unsettied claims, which is gathered from
many different systems; and

— we involve senior resources, with deep
industry experience, together with our
actuatial specialists in evaluating the
Group's estimations of outstanding claims.

Risk margins and Probability of Adequacy

The evaluation of risk margins and Probability
of Adequacy is significant to the key audit
matter because it is complex and necessitated
a significant leve! of judgement by the Group.

The outstanding claims liability includes
statistically determined risk margins developed
by the Group to make aflowance for the
inherent uncertainty in estimating uitimate
claim settlernents. The risk margins are
inciuded to achieve a specified Probability of
Adequacy for the total outstanding claims
reserves.

We involved senior resources and our actuarial
specialists to focus on the complex statistical
processes and parameters used by the Group
to establish the risk margins.

outstanding ciaims liabilities. This included stress testing
management's calcutation of outstanding claims liability with a
range of independently determined valuation assumptions
refiecting the uncertainty of COVID-19.

We also considered the work and findings of an external,
independent actuary, engaged by the Group in respect of the
valuation of Canterbury earthquake liabilities arising from the
Lumiey portfolio. Qur procedures included evaluating the
compstence and objectivity of the Group's Appointed Actuary
and the external independent actuary.

Our procedures around the financial records and controls
included, amongst others:

— testing accounting and actuarial controls such as a
reconcifiations of key datg;

— testing key controls and a sample of claims case estimates
and paid claims, by comparing the Group's estimation for
individual claims to third party evidence; and

— using our IT specialists, we tested the recongiliations
betwesn data on the claims systems (underlying data) and
data used in the actuarial modslling processes.

Risk margins and Probability of Adequacy

With the assistance of our actuarial specialists we evaluated the
appropriateness of the statistical processes to establish the
Group's risk margins. Our procedures included:

— evaluating the statistical processes’ suitability by criticaily
studying these and comparing them to known industry
practices, our industry knowledge and other observable
trends in industry forums and Actuaries Institute papers;

— assessing the risk margin parameters for significant
portfolios by comparing these to external sources of data
including published statistics, prior periods and our own
industry knowledge;

— checking the central estimates of outstanding claims, which
waore tested in the vaiuation of gross outstanding claims
liahility processes, and are a key input into the risk margin
model, to the undetlying financial records; and

— critically evaluating the Group's judgement in the execution
of the statistical processes by comparing the overall results
to our expectations based on the Group’s historical
sxperience, our industry knowledge and independent
ohbservable trends.

47




K

Valuation of reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims ($684.5m}

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Refer to Note 9 of the financial statements.

Reinsurance and other recoveries on
outstanding claims represent the Group's
estimate of the reinsurers’ share of the costs
to sattls all claims that have occurred up to and
including 30 June 2020. These claims may
either be known to the Group (reported], or
unknown {not yet reported}.

The Group has reinsurance cover in the form of
an Excess of Loss contract, designed to
protect its exposure to catastrophic claim
events,

The Group aiso has a range of other significant
reinsurance contracts which form part of its
capital management plan. These include Whole
of Account Quota Shares, Adverse
Development Cover with a related party
reinsurer in the form of an Excess of Loss
contract, and other Quota Share arrangements.

Reinsurance and other recoveries on
outstanding ciaims are a function of
outstanding claims liabilittes and are theretore
subject to the same valuation uncertainties as
ouistanding claims liabilities.

The valuation of reinsurance and other
recoveries on outstanding claims is significant
to our audit due to their size and the high level
of judgement applied by the Group in
determining its quantum.

in addition to our audit procedures undertaken to assess the
valuation of the outstanding claims liability, our procedures
included:

— forming our own expectation of reinsurance and other
recoveries on outstanding claims arising from the Whole of
Account Quota Share contracts and the Adverse
Development Cover contract based on our understanding of
the key terms of those contracts and compared our
expectation to the Group’s estimate, investigating any
material differences;

— chacking that the reinsurance balances have been
determined on a basis consistent with the underlying
valuation of gross outstanding claims liabilities and the
reinsurance programras in place;

— confirming significant reinsurance receivable balances with
related party counterparties; and

—— assessing the recoverability of balances owed by reinsurers
by considering their credit worthiness and capital strength,
hased on external sources of information such as Standard
and Poor's credit ratings, payment history, and consideration
of information for indicators of disputes.

[ J—
l == Qther Information

The Directors, on behalf of the Company and Group, are responsible for the other information included in the Annual
Report. Other information includes the Directors’ Report and Corporate Governance Statement. Qur opinion on the
Company and Group financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Company and Group financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Company and
Group financiat staternents or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

$ . . I
§98 Use of this independent auditor’s report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the shareholder those matters we are required to state to them in the independent auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
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§%8 Use of this independent auditor’s report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholder. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the shareholder those matters we are required to state to them in the independent auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the shareholder for our audit work, this independent auditor’s report, or any of the opinions we have
formed.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors, on hehalf of the Company and Group, are responsible for:

— the preparation and fair presentation of the Company and Group financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand {being New Zealand Equivalents to International Financiat
Reporting Standards) and international Financial Reporting Standards;

—— implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Company and Group set of financial
statements that is fairly presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess they either intend to liquidate or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

4 L\ Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Company and Group
financial statements

Our objective is:

— to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Company and Group financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error; and

— to issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion,

Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs NZ will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Company and
Group financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of these Company and Group financial statements is located
at the External Reporting Board (XRB) website at:

httoAvwwe b govt nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/avditors-responsibilities/audit-repori-1/

This description forms part of our independent auditor's report.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Jamie Munro.

For and on behalf of

KPMG
Auckiand

6 August 2020
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IAG New Zealand Limited - Section 78 Appointed
Actuaries Report as at 30 June 2020

This report has been prepared in accordance with section 78 of the Insurance
Prudential Supervision Act 2010 (“Act”) and details the review of the actuarial
information, as defined in section 77(4), used in the preparation of IAG New Zealand
Limited’s (“IAG”) 30 June 2020 financial statements as required under section 77 of
the Act (“review”). It states the following:

a.

b.

The review was carried out by Christian Barrington, IAG’s Appointed Actuary.

The Appointed Actuary reviewed the actuarial information used in the financial
statements.

The review covers actuarial information in, or used in the preparation of, financial
statements. There was no limitation to the review of actuarial information carried
out by the Appointed Actuary.

The relationships (other than that of actuary) and interests that the actuary has in
IAG (or any of its subsidiaries) are as follows:

(i) An annual short term incentive payment is a portion of the Appointed
Actuary’s remuneration. This payment relies partly on the financial performance
of IAG.

(i) The Appointed Actuary holds an insurance policy with IAG.

(iii)The Appointed Actuary holds shares with Insurance Australia Group Limited

All the information and explanations required by the Appointed Actuary were
provided.

In the opinion of the Appointed Actuary and from an actuarial perspective:

(i) the actuarial information contained in the financial statements has been
appropriately included in those statements; and

(ii) the actuarial information used in the preparation of the financial statements
has been used appropriately.

In the opinion of the Appointed Actuary IAG is maintaining the solvency margin
that applies under a condition imposed under section 21 (2) (b) of the Act at 30
June 2020.

. As at 30 June 2020 IAG is not considered to be a life insurer as per the Act. As

such no opinion under section 78 (h) of the Act is required.
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IAG New Zealand Limited - Section 78 Appointed
Actuaries Report as at 30 June 2020

This report is not required to be prepared in accordance with professional standard 90:
Communication of Professional Advice of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. All
matters that are required under this standard are contained within the 30 June 2020
Financial Condition Report.

Signed

L

Christian Barrington

Appointed Actuary

IAG NZ Limited

Fellow of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries

Date 29 July 2020
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